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2024
3,825,064.90 81.60
363,439.33 7.75
227,280.07 4.85
509,928.10 10.88
4,925,712.40 105.08
-237,959.36 -5.08
4,687,753.04 100.00
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30
2024
Tencent Holdings 10,300 4,104,089 398.46| 3,576,160] 347.20
Ltd
PDD Holdings Inc 2,352 155,046 65.92 294,423 125.18
China Mobile Ltd 29,500 1,470,302 49.84| 2,062,050 69.90
Alibaba Group 23,900 2,467,158 103.23| 1,776,965 74.35
Holding Ltd
Kweichow Moutai 914 1,512,956]1,655.31| 1,558,370|1,705.00
Co Ltd
Taiwan 8,000 4,645,382 580.67| 6,320,000] 790.00
Semiconductor
Manufacturing Co
Ltd
CNOOC Ltd 72,000 577,318 8.02| 1,461,600 20.30
China 245,000 1,270,124 5.18| 1,249,500 5.10
Construction Bank
Corp
AlA Group Ltd 19,000 1,819,584 95.77| 1,098,200 57.80
China Telecom 254,000 644,342 2.54] 1,097,280 4.32
10
Corp Ltd
China Railway 209,000 1,016,375 4.86 810,920 3.88
11
Group Ltd
12 |NetEase Inc 5,200 862,036 165.78 781,560 150.30
13 Nissin Foods Co 150,000 745,238 4.97 771,000 5.14
Ltd
14 China 290,000 624,608 2.15 722,100 2.49
BlueChemical Ltd
Gigabyte 10,000 1,904,026] 190.40| 2,990,000 299.00
15 |Technology Co Ltd
16 |Meituan 6,480 1,247,118| 192.46 709,560 109.50
17 Yum China 2,400 846,478 352.70 706,560 294.40
Holdings Inc
18 President Chain 10,000 2,642,496 264.25| 2,740,000 274.00
Store Corp
19 First Pacific Co 178,000 459,482 2.58 653,260 3.67
Ltd
Beijing Tong Ren 61,000 962,698 15.78 583,770 9.57
20 |Tang Chinese
Medicine Co Ltd
Hong Kong 2,300 336,586 146.34 578,680 251.60
21 |Exchanges &
Clearing Ltd
2 Tong Yang 19,000 873,048 45.95| 2,261,000f 119.00
Industry Co Ltd
2 ANTA Sports 6,000 927,347| 154.56 538,200 89.70
Products Ltd
Bosideng 118,000 604,495 5.12 534,540 4.53
24 |International
Holdings Ltd
25 TAL Education 5,503 72,032 13.09 66,256 12.04
Group
2% Techtronic 4,500 504,614 112.14 492,300 109.40

Industries Co Ltd
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China 50,000 1,006,565 20.13 476,000 9.52 1.3
27 |International
Capital Corp Ltd
China Pacific 26,400 535,159 20.27 456,192 17.28 1.2
28 |Insurance Group
Co Ltd
China Railway 90,000 463,029 5.14 455,400 5.06 1.2
29 |Construction Corp
Ltd
ITEQ Corp 16,000 1,452,442 90.78| 1,752,000 109.5 1.1
30
2024
21
21
12
11
7
5
4
4
3
2
2
1
7
100

2024

2024

SFC
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2024
13
9,166 1,438 555.05 87,098
2014 12 31
14
8,249 1,294 543.11 85,225
2015 12 31
15
6,626 1,040 517.37 81,186
2016 12 31
16
8,578 1,346 709.45 111,327
2017 12 31
17
6,129 962 526.56 82,628
2018 12 31
18
7,636 1,198 676.31 106,127
2019 12 31
19
9,596 1,506 858.46 134,710
2020 12 31
20
8,347 1,310 767.95 120,507
2021 12 31
21
5,898 926 563.04 88,352
2022 12 31
22
4,702 738 489.23 76,770
2023 12 31
2023 5,186 814 510.98 80,183
5,288 830 523.58 82,160
5,699 894 564.36 88,559
5,132 805 526.12 82,559
4,915 771 503.92 79,075
10 4,616 724 479.29 75,210
11 4,763 747 494 .56 77,606
12 4,702 738 489.23 76,770
2024 4,350 683 455.23 71,435
4,572 717 480.20 75,353
4,497 706 478.03 75,012
4,688 736 499.33 78,355
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13
0.63
2014 2014 12 31
14
2.15
2015 2015 12 31
15
4.74
2016 2016 12 31
16
37.13
2017 2017 12 31
17
25.78
2018 2018 12 31
18
28.44
2019 2019 12 31
19
26.93
2020 2020 12 31
20
10.54
2021 2021 12 31
21
26.68
2022 2022 12 31
22
13.11
2023 2023 12 31

100 x
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(2014F1R1B~— 2023F%H)
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50
37.13
i 2844 2g93
20
Ig 063 i __l_ - . - B i -l
A0 218 474 R__ B R B
20 -10.54 1211
30 -25.78 -26.68
40
0 “SHvam 20168 2016F 2017 2018F S010F O0S0F 2021%  202oF  2023%
CENESER =100 x{a = b} " b
& = ARG | 0N R R
b = SIEROEROON) DS D HREEH
13 0 1,896 16,514
2014 2014 12 31 0 1,896 16,514
14 293 1,618 15,189
2015 2015 12 31 293 1,618 15,189
15 0 2,382 12,807
2016 2016 12 31 0 2,382 12,807
16 115 831 12,091
2017 2017 12 31 115 831 12,091
17 223 675 11,639
2018 2018 12 31 223 675 11,639
18 160 519 11,280
2019 2019 12 31 160 519 11,280
19 0 102 11,178
2020 2020 12 31 0 102 11,178
20 0 309 10,869
2021 2021 12 31 0 309 10,869
21 0 393 10,476
2022 2022 12 31 0 393 10,476
22 10 875 9,611
2023 2023 12 31 10 875 9,611
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2023 12 31
JA-VP
2023 12 31
2023

5,385,522 5(d), 8 4,378,275 687,038,913
7,754 1,216,758
5(d) 359,892 56,474,253
4,745,921 744,729,923
5(a) 6,264 982,947
5(c) 4,500 706,140
34,081 5,347,991
44,845 7,037,077
4,701,076 737,692,846

6 9,611
9 489.13 76,754

2024 26

29 30 34
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JA-VP
2023 12 31

2023

11,684 143,525 22,521,943

5(d) 2,128 333,926

________ 145,653 22,855,869

5(a) (87,236) (13,689,073)

5(c) (54,146) (8,496,590)

5(d) (8,292) (1,301,181)

5(d) (38,126) (5,982,732)

(29,511) (4,630,866)

5(d) (671) (105,293)

(2,068) (324,511)

(996) (156,292)

(14,459) (2,268,906)

_______ (235,505) ____(836,955,445)

________ (89,852) ____(14,099,576)

(894, 338) (140, 339,519)

257,920 40,472,806

(2,181) (342,243)

_______ (638,599) ___ (100,208,955)

(728,451) (114,308,531)

30 34
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JA-VP
2023 12 31
2023
(894,338) (140, 339,519)
257,920 40,472,806
(2,181) (342,243)
(89,852) (14,099,576)
_______ (728,451) ___(114,308,531)
4,757 746,468
(473,655) (74,325,943)
_______ (468,898) ____(73.579,474)
(1,197,349) (187,888,005)
5,898,425 925,580,851
4,701,076 737,692,846

30 34
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2023 12 31
2023
140,257 22,009,128
1,919 301,129
3,413,015 535,570,314
(2,591,643) (406,680, 620)
(236,634) (37,132,607)
(1,013) (158,960)
e 725,900 113,908,385
4,757 746,468
(473,655) (74,325,943)
_______ (468,898) ____(73.579,474)
257,003 40,328,911
102,889 16,145,342
359,892 56,474,253
30 34
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2023 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2023 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002 2003 11 27
JA VP
2023 12 31
2023
97,865,466
124,181,721
JA VP 4,701,076
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2023

229,506
117

1
451,316

680,940
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2023 12 31
2023 12 31
Kweichow Moutai
2026 12 14 Co Ltd A Shares 145,705 2,892
2023 12 31
2023 12 31
A 145,705 145,705 145,705
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0.125
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4,378,275
359,892
2,128

(671)
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2023
10,476
10

(875)
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2023 12 31
1,495,024 2022 4,526,137

2,103 2022 6,793

FASB
820 FASB ASC Topic 820
FASB ASC Topic 820

FASB ASC Topic 820
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2023
4,232,570 4,232,570
145,705 145,705
4,232,570 145,705 4,378,275

Real Gold Mining Ltd. 166,500

58/280

2023

(9.35)
(64.56)
(73.91)

489.13

(13.13)

(13.13)

(1.68)

(1.68)

4.39

4.39
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2024 26
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JA VP
2023 12 31
4,423,566 )
China Construction Bank Corp H Shares 245,000 145,842 3.10
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd H Shares 10,500 36,561 0.78
China Railway Construction Corp Ltd H Shares 185,000 109,652 2.33
China Railway Group Ltd H Shares 209,000 93,108 1.98
Techtronic Industries Co Ltd 4,500 53,603 1.14
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 23,900 231,304 4.92
Luk Fook Holdings (International) Ltd 13,000 34,865 0.74
ANTA Sports Products Ltd 6,000 58,183 1.24
Bosideng International Holdings Ltd 118,000 53,021 1.13
Li Ning Co Ltd 12,000 32,106 0.68
Galaxy Entertainment Group Ltd 8,000 44,805 0.95
Meituan 6,480 67,939 1.45
Yum China Holdings Inc 2,400 102,064 2.17
CNOOC Ltd 72,000 119,823 2.55

China International Capital Corp Ltd H Shares 50,000 73,353 1.56

60/280



Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing Ltd

China Mengniu Dairy Co Ltd
First Pacific Co Ltd
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JA VP
2023 12 31
4,423,566 )

Nissin Foods Co Ltd 150,000 120,015 2.55
AIA Group Ltd 19,000 165,518 3.52
China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co Ltd H Shares 26,400 53,263 1.13
Ping An Insurance (Group) Co of China Ltd H Shares 26,500 119,922 2.55
China BlueChemical Ltd H Shares 376,000 94,824 2.02
Real Gold Mining Ltd 166,500

NetEase Inc 5,200 93,595 1.99
Tencent Holdings Ltd 11,200 420,956 8.95
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Co Ltd 61,000 94,801 2.02
China Resources Land Ltd 12,000 43,013 0.91
Chinasoft International Ltd 44,000 33,740 0.72
Kingboard Holdings Ltd 20,500 49,022 1.04
ZTE Corp H Shares 19,800 44,205 0.94
China Mobile Ltd 29,500 244,716 5.21

China Telecom Corp Ltd H Shares 254,000 121,610 2.59
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4,423,566 )

Kerry Logistics Network Ltd 28,500 29,990 0.64
China Longyuan Power Group Corp Ltd H Shares 38,000 28,798 0.61
_.3.182,811 . 67.70.

220,626

Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Controls Co Ltd

A Shares (SZHK) 11,400 47,106 1.00
Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd A Shares (SHHK) 314 76,172 1.62
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2023 12 31

220,626

Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical Electronics
Co Ltd A Shares (SZHK) 700 28,590 0.61

Maxscend Microelectronics Co Ltd

A Shares (SzHK) 3,660 72,531 1.54
o...224899 . 4.77

371,237
Tong Yang Industry Co Ltd 19,000 46,970 1.00
Sunonwealth Electric Machine Industry Co Ltd 6,000 20,980 0.45
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Ltd 8,000 154,312 3.28
Gigabyte Technology Co Ltd 10,000 86,524 1.84
Micro-Star International Co Ltd 8,000 53,085 1.13
Wistron NeWeb Corp 6,000 30,446 0.65
Yageo Corp 1,000 19,419 0.41
. Y £ 8.76

227,280
TAL Education Group ADR 5,503 69,503 1.48
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2023 12 31
227,280
PDD Holdings inc ADR 2,352 344,121 7.32
_o. ALs.e2d 8.80_
5,242,709 ) _.A4232,510 0 . 90.03,
142,813

CICC Financial Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai
Co Ltd A Shares) P-note 12/14/2026 600 145,705 3.10
_____ 145,705 ______.3.10
5,385,522 4,378,275 93.13
359,892 7.66
(37,091) (0.79)
4,701,076 100.00
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Valua Partnars inteligent Funds
- JA-VR China Naw Candury Fund
Finencial slatements for it year ended 31 Dacember 2023

Statement of assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2023

Mofe 2023
Uss
Aasefs
Invastment in securilies, at fair value {cost: US$5,385,522) 5(d), B 4,378,275
Dividends and interest receivable 7754
Cash and cash equivalents 5(d) 359,892
Total assets 4795921
Liahilities
Investment management fees payabla S(a) 6,264
Trustee and fund administration fees payable 5(c) 4,500
Accrued expenses and other payables 34,081
Total llakilities oy 44_,_81%
MNet assets 4,701,076
Number of units in issus 6 2,611
Net assst value per unit 9 489,13

Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on 26 April 2024,

Signed by:
Value Partners Limited, Manager HSBC Trustee {Cayman} Limited, Trusles

AL b

The notes on pages 11 to 29 and the inveslment schedule on pages 30 fo 34 form part of
these financlal statements.
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Statement of operations
for the year ended 31 December 2023

Dividend income (net of withholding tax of US$11 684}
Interest income

Investment management fees
Trustee and fund administration fees
Transaction fees

Professional fees

Auditors' remuneration

Bank charges

Annual fees

Interast expansas

Cther operating expenses

Met invesiment loss

Met realised losses on invastments
Met unrealised gains on investments
Met fareign exchange lossaes

Net realised and unrealised losses on investments and
foreign exchange losses

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations
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Ooooooooooooooooooad

Valve Pariners nlskigent Funds
- JA-VP China New Comlwry Fund
Firaneial setemema forithe yeer onded 31 December 2023

Mole

5(d)

S(a)
S(c)
5(d)
5{d)

5(d) -

2023
uss

143,525
2,128

145,653

(87,236)
(54,148)
(8,292)
(38,128)
(20,511)
(671)
(2,068)
(998)
(14,450)

(235,505)

(B94,338)
257,920
{2,181)

mm———————— e

(728,451)

The notes on pages 11 to 28 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 34 form pard of

these financial statements.
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= JA-VP China Naw Canlury Fund
Frencial statements farthe yeer onded 31 December 2023

Statement of changes in net assets
for the year ended 31 December 2023

2023

uss
Mat realized logses on investments (894, 338)
Met unrealised gains on invesiments 257,820
Met foreign exchange losses {2,181)
Met investment loss (89,852)
Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations .. g?_gﬂi‘:.]
Units issued 4,787
Units redeemed {473 85E)
Net decrease in net assets resulting from capital transactions ____(468,898)
Met decrease in net assets {1,187,349)
Net assets
Beginning of year 5,593.42§
End of year 4,701,076

The notes on pages 11 to 29 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 34 form part of
these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 December 2023

Operating activities

Dividends received
Interest received

Proceeds from sale of investments
Payments on purchase of investments

Operating expenses paid

Interest paid

MNet cash generated from operating activities
Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of units
Payments on redemption of units

Met cash used in financing activities

Met increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) at beginning of

year

Cash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) at end of year
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Veiee Pertners indeligent Funds
= Ji=VP Ching New Century Fund

Finangia! stelemants for the pear ended 31 Docember 2023

2023
uss

140,257

1,919

3413015
(2,591,643)
(238,634)
(1,013)

257,003

102,888

358,892

The notes on pages 11 to 28 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 34 form part of

these financial statements.
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Financial slalemerts for the pear ended 31 Decamber 2023

Notes to the financial statements

General

Valug Partners Intelligent Funds (the "Trust™) is an open-ended umbrella unit trust
established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated 21 June
2000, as amended from time to time {the "Trust Deed”), as amended. The Trust registered
under the Mutual Funds Act of the Cayman Islands on 30 June 2000,

The Trust fs able to Issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 December 2023, China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund
have been launched. China Corwergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund commenced operations on 17 July 2000, 7 March 2002 and
27 November 2003 respectively.

These financial statements have been prepared for the JA-VP China New Cenfury Fund (the
*Sub-fund®). The financial statements of China Convergence Fund and Chinese Mainland
Focus Fund have bean prepared separately and consequently are not included in theze
financial statements.

Asg at 31 December 2023, the combined net assets of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

Mame af sub-funds nel assels
2023

ussg

China Convergsnce Fund 97,865,466
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 124,181,721
JANP China New Century Fund 4,701,076
Value Partners Intelligent Funds 226,748,263

The investment activities of the Sub-fund are managed by Value Fartners Limited (the
"Manager") and the administration of the Sub-fund is handled by HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited {the “Administrator”) who has delegated its role to HSBC Institutional Trust Service
(Asia) Limited.

The abjective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders wilh medium to long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of enterprises which are either (i} owned by
private sector interesis in the Greater China Region; or (i) considered by the Manager to
have the majority of their assets situated in, or the majority of their income derived from
operations in the Greater China Region.

1
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Financial slatements for the yeer ondad 37 December 2022

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles {(*US GAAP")., The Sub-fund is considered an
investment company under US GAAP and fallows the accounting and reporting guidance
applicable to investment companies in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASE")
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 246, Financial Sarvices - Investment Companies
("ASC 8467). The signifizant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The measurement cumency of the financial stalements is United States dollars ("USS" or
“UsD") reflecting the fact fhat most of the transactions are dencminated in USD as well as
Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued and
redeemed in USD and any distributions to investors will also be in USD.

The financial statements are presented in USD.
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with LS GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of conlingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Fareign currency transiation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign cumrency exchange rate ruling
at the date of the tranzactions. Monetary azsets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exchange differences
relating to investments are included in gains and losses on investments. All other foreign
currency exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash and cash
equivalents are presented as net foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
operations. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on realised gains and losses on
disposals or seitlements of investments are recognised in the statement of cperations.

12
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Finangis! slalements for the year anded 31 Decamber 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)
fnvestments
Classification

Investments consist of equity securilies and participation note. The Sub-fund classifies all its
investments held for trading, which are bought and held principally for the punpose of salling
them in the near term,

Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments on the date it becomas a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From
this date any gains and losses arising fram changes in fair value of the financial assats or
financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognisad unless ona of the parties has performed their
obligations under the contract.

Fair value measurement principles

“Fair valug” is the price that would be receivad to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
ar, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Sub-fund has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk,

When available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the guoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active” if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an engoing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments quoted in an active
market at a last traded price, because this price provides a reasonable approximation of the
exit price.

The Sub-fund records derivative contracis at fair value, Changes in the fair value of
derivative contracts are recorded as unrealised gains and losses The Sub-fund generally
records a realised gain or loss on the expiralion, termination, or setllement of a derivative
contract.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses valuation technigues
that maximise the use of relevant chservable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technigue incerporates all of the factors that market
participants would take into account in pricing a lransaction.

Investments in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per share
as reported by the administrators of such funds.

13
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Vaive Partners ineligent Funds
- JA-VP Ghina Naw Cenfury Fund
Francial statemens forthe year endad 31 December 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Investments {cantinued)
Impairment

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the date of each
statement of assets and liabilities to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of operations as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effeclive interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss recognised on a financial asset
carried at amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event

occurring after the write-down, the wrile-down is reversed through the statement of
operaticns.

Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method lo determine realised gains and losses on
derecognition.

Interest Income and expense

Inferest income and expense is recognised in the statement of cperations as it accrues,
using the original effective intarest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or
ongination date. Interest income and expanse includes the amortisation of any discount or
premium, transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an
interest-bearing instrument and its amount at malurity calculated on an effective interest rate
basis.

" Dividend income

Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities are recognised in the
statement of operations on the ex-dividend date.

In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additional
shares rather than cash. In such cases lhe Sub-fund recognises the dividend income for the

amount of the cash dividend altemative with the corresponding debit treated as an additional
invesiment.

Expenses

All expenses are recagnised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.

14
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Valwe Pariners inieligent Funds
= JA=VP China New Canfury Fund
Financlal slalements for e paar ended 31 Docember 2023

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash denominated in foreign currencies, represents
cash deposits held at financial institutions. Cash and cash equivalents include short-term
highly liquid investments of sufficient credit quality that are readily converiible to known
amounts of cash and have original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interast, which approximates fair value, Cash
and cash equivalents are held for meeting short-term liquidity requirements, rather than for
investment purposes. All cash and cash equivalents are unrestricted.

Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt from
paying taxes on income, profits or capital gains. The Trust has received an undertaking from
the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from tax In the Cayman Islands.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of origin. Invesiment income iz recorded net of withholding tax and is
recognised in the statement of operations as Incurred. Refer to note 4 for more details.

Related parties

Far the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered ta be ralatad to the
Sub-fund if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or exercise significant
influence aver the Sub-fund in making financial and operaling decisions. Related parties
may be individuals or entities.

Offsetting of assets and Nabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presanted in the
siatement of assets and liabilities when, and only when, the Sub-fund has a legal right to
offset the amounts and it intends either to settls on a net basis or to realise the asset and
seltle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expenses are presanted on a net basis for net realised gains and change in
realised losses on investments and foreign currencies.
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Finanziel stafemeants for the pear ended 31 Cosember 2023

Financial instruments and associated risks

The Sub-fund maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its investment management strategy. The Sub-fund's investments
comprise aquity securities and participation nate.

The Sub-fund's invesling activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of
financial risk fo which the Sub-fund is exposed lo are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Asset aliocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the assets to
achieve the investment objective. Divergence from target asset allocations and the
compasition of the portfolic is monitored by the Manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments cutstanding at the date of the statement of
assets and liabilities and the risk management policies employed by the Sub-fund are
discussed below.

Market risk

Markat risk embodias the potential for both lo2ses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk.

The Sub-fund's sirategy on the management of invesiment risk is driven by the Sub-fund's
investment ohjective. The invesiment objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with
medium to long-term capital appreciation (in USD terms). The Sub-fund's market risk is
managed on a daily basis by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures in
place. The SubHund's overall market positions are monitored on a timely basis by the
Manager.

Details of the Sub-fund’s investment portfolio as at the date of the statement of assets and
llahilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investments are disclosed
separately.

Currency risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denominated in
currencies olher than its functional cumrency. Consequently, the Sub-fund is exposed to risks
that the exchange rate of its cumency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a
manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Sub-fund’s assels or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the USD.

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the
assets and llabilities are denominated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.

18

75/280



(a)
()

(i)

(Hil)

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Value Pariners [nladigan! Funds
- JA-VP Ching Naw Caniury Fund
Furancial stetements for the yeer snded 31 December 2023

Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Currency risk {continued)

The Sub-fund's total net exposure 1o fluctuations in foreign cumency exchange rates as at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities was as follows:

Net exposure

2023

USS

Chinese Yuan 228,508
Japanese Yen 117
Singapore dollar 1
MNew Taivran dollar 451,316
B80,840

The Sub<fund does not expect any significant movements in the HKD/USD exchange rate as
the HKD is pegged to the USD and accordingly the HKD foreign currency assets and
liabilities have been excluded on the above analysis.

Interest rate risk
The majority of the Sub-fund's financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing.

All interesi-bearing financial assets and liabilities mature or reprice in the short-term, no
tonger than fwelve months. As a result, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair
value intarest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market inferest rates.
Any excess cash and cash equivalents of the Sub-fund are invested in short-term
instruments., '

Price risk

Price risk is the rizk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments traded in the markel

As the majority of the Sub-fund's financial instruments are carried at fair value with fair value
changes recognised in the staterment of operations, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect net assats resulting from oparations and the financial instruments’ carrying
amounts on the statement of assels and liabilities.

Frice risk iz mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified porifolio of inslruments
traded on vardous markets, In addition, price risk may be hedged using derivative financial
instruments such as options, warrants or futures.
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Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail 1o discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund, Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the
countarparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house,

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation ar commitment that it has enterad into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument is involved, because the
counterparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund’s exposure to credit risk is menitored by the Manager on an ongeing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates fo transactions awaiting settlement,
Risk relating fo unseitled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period
involved,

The camrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure on
the statement of assets and liakilities.

Ag at 31 December 2023, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to
counterparties except to the custodian. Substantially all the financial instruments are cleared
through and held in custody primarily by one major intemational institution. The Sub-fund is
subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfil its cbligations
efther fo refurn the Sub-fund's securities or repay amounts owed. The institulion is rated Aa3
par credit ratings issued by Moody's. The Sub-fund does not anticipate any losses as a result
of this concentration.

Liquidity risk

The Sub-fund's Explanatory Memarandum provides for the daily creation and cancellation of
units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions at any
time.

The Sub-fund invested in a closed-ended fund which is not traded in an organised public
market. The Sub-fund also invested in an equily which is suspended and delisted from
trading as at vear end. These investments generally might be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-
fund might not be able to liquidate these investments quickly at an amaunt closs to its fair
value in arder to meet its liquidity requirements, or to respond to specific events such as
deteriaration in the creditworthiness of any parlicular issuer,

The Sub-fund predominantly invasted in listed equity securitles which are considared to be
readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.

Derivative contracts

Asg at 31 December 2023, the Sub-fund's holding in participation note as specified in the
following table:
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Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)

Derivative contracts (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

Amupunls ngladad i the
statemant of operations
Change in
Long exposure Realised  unrealised
Type af conrac! Expiration Urderiying Falr value gankss galioss
US§ LI5S LI5§
14 December  Kwelchow Moutad Co
Farlcipaticn note 2026 Ltd A Shares 145,705 - 2,882

The participation note disclosed above is the only derivalive contract that the Sub-fund
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Mone of the financial assets and financial liabilities is offset in the statement of financial
position.

The enforceable master netting arrangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
staternent of assets and liabilities. This is because they create a right of set-off of recognised
amaounts that is enforceable only following on event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the Sub-fund er its counterparties, in addilien, the Sub-fund and its counterparties do not
intend te sefile on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabiliies simultanaausly.

The gross amounts of recognised financial assets and financial liabilities and their net
amounts presented in the statementi of assels and liabilities have been measured in the
statement of assets and liabilities at fafr value,

As at 31 December 2023

Financial assefs subject to enforceable master netting arrangements

Grass
bt
of recogrssd N SO
francial o financial Amgunis
Gross  Jababias oioe! azsey of fnarceal
amaus i the prazavied in LI P
of rpcogrised satermen! Mo gtelevoen! (maivding Cash
firsanci! of aazels Lo of assels aad AEA-CASH callaimral Wl
BRI Habwites labildes co'eern} recehved amaual
k] 3 z ] 3 3
Dertvative fnancial Instruments:
- Pafcipation nole
- Coumarpany A 145,705 - 145,708 - E 145,705
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Taxation

There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands as the Trust has received an
undertaking frem the Govemor in Cabiret of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local
income, profits and capital gains taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is
included in these financial statements.

The Sub-fund reccgnisas the tax benafits of uncertain tax positions only where the position is
mare likely than not {Le. greater than 50 percent) to be susiained assuming examination by a
taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax
position has met the recognifion threshold, the Sub-fund must presume that the position will
be examined by the appropriate taxing authority ihat has full knowledge of all relévant
information. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition thresheld is
measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognise in the Sub-fund's financial
statements, Income tax and related inferest and penalties would be recognised by the Sub-
fund as tax expense in the statement of operations If the tax positions were deemed to not
meet the more likely than not threshold.

The Sub-fund analyses ali open tax vears for all major taxing jursdictions. Open tax years
are those that are open for exam by taxing authorities, as defined by the Statute of
Limitations in each jurisdiction. The Sub-fund identifies its major tax jurisdictions as the
Cayman Islands and foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significant investments.
The Sub-fund has no examinaticns by taxing autherities in progress.

Management has analysed the Sub-fund’s tax positions, and has concluded that no liability
for unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Further,
management is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the
total amounts of unrecognised tax benefits will significantly changs in the next twelve
maonths.

The Profits Tax Exemption for Offshore Funds Ordinance (“the Offshore Funds Ordinance”)
came into effect on 10 March 2006 and has besn amendead on 17 July 2015, Under the
Offshore Funds Ordinance, exemption from Hong Kong profits tax is granted to non-resident
parsons in respect of profits from specified transactions carried out through or arranged by
certain specified persons in any year of assessment on or after 1 April 1986.

Effective from 1 April 2019, the Inland Revenue (Profits Tax Exemption for Funds)
{Amendment) Ordinance (collectively referred as "the Funds Exemption Ordinancas”)
provides profits tax exemption for funds whether or not the central managemenl and control
of the funds is exercised in Hong Kong subject o certain conditions. The Manager believes
that they have implemented steps to enable the Sub-fund to meet the exemption criteria
under the Funds Exemption Ordinances. If the Sub-fund does not meel the exemption
criteria under the Funds Exemption Ordinances, the Sub-fund is exposed to Hong Kong
profits tax at a rate of 16.5% in respect of any profits which arise in or are derived from Hong
Kong and which are not capital profits or exempt profits if it is treated as carrying on a trade
or business in Hong Kong either on its own account or through any person as an agent,
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Taxation (continued)

In preparing these financial statemeants, the Manager has made certain assumptions and
used varicus estimates conceming the tax exposure which is dependent on what might
happen in the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual
resulis.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments linked to "A” shares, issued by one or more
Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors ("QFII") or their affiliates as wel as "A" shares of
companies listed in the PRC, via the Manager's QF|l quota.

On 14 Movember 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF"), the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission {the "CSRC") jointly issued the "Motice on temporary exemption of Corporate
Income Tax on capital gaing darived from tha transfer of eguily investment assets such as
PRC domesiic stocks by QFIl and RQFII" (the "Notice"). According to the Notice, amongst
other things, QFlls and RQFIls, which do not have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in the PRC
is not effectively connected with such establishment, will ba lermporarily exempt from
corporate income tax on gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity investment assets
(including China "A" shares) effective from 17 November 2014, Accordingly, as at 31
December 2023, the Sub-fund had not made any provision for the {ax on capital gains on
denvatives instruments linked to "A” shares and China "A" shares on or after 17 November
2014 basad on the Notice.

The Sub-fund also directly invests in "B” shares of companies listed in the PRC for
subscription by foreign investors and may be subject to PRC withholding tax of 10% an
dividend income. A 10% withholding tax may also be payable on the capital gains derived
from the sale of "B" shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived from the transfar of
ghares of PRC companies by non-residents should be subject to a withholding tax of 10%,
unlass axampt undar relevant tax treaties. The SAT has remained silent on the collection of
withholding tax for capital gains and until further clarification is issued by the SAT, the
Manager considers that there is significant unceriainty in respect of whether the Sub-fund
hiag any liability and the extent of such lability with respect 1o tax on capital gains derived
from the sale of PRC "B" shares, In making this assessment, the Managar has cansidered ()
the current position of the SAT, (i) the absence of a withholding machanism of the relevant
tax and {iii) current market practice, Accordingly, as at 31 December 2023, the Sub-fund had
not made any provision for the tax on capital gains on "B" shares based on the above
judgments made by tha Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income {ax provisiening appreach on
an on-going basis taking into account any recent development in the market.
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Related party transactions

The Sub-fund entered into the following material related party transactions for the year. All
such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commearcial tarms.

Investment management fees

The Manager, an investment management company incorporated in British Virgin Islands,
has implemented the investment strategy as specified in the Explanatory Memorandum.

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives a management fee
maonthly in arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each valuation day as
defined in the Explanatory Memorandum. An investment management fee of US$87,236
was charged to the statement of operations during the year, Investmant managemenl fees
payable of US$6,264 is included in liabilities as at 31 December 2023.

Performance fees

Under the Investrment Management Agreament, the Manager is also antitled to a
performance fee, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at the
last valuation day of a calendar quarter (prior to the accrual of any performance fee for that
calendar quarier but including any distribution declared or paid in respect of the relevant
performance periods) exceeds the higher of:

(i) the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in the
last calendar gquarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the Manager in
respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee; and

(i)  the initial offer price at which the units were first offered.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by multiplying this fee rate by
the product of the excess of the net asset value per unit (calculated as stated above) and the
average of the nurmber of units in issue immediately after each valuation day in the relevant

calendar quarter. No perfiormance fees were charged to the statement of operations during
the year. Mo performance fees payable as at 31 December 2023.
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Related party transactions (continued)

Trustes and fund administration fees

The Trustee is entitled to monthly trustee and fund administration fees which are determined
based on the monthly net asset value of the Sub-fund as below:

Trustes and
fund
adrminisiration
feg
QEr &N
shown as % of
net assef value
Net assst vaiue

First US$150 million 0.135%
MNext USFE50 millicn 0.13%
Thereatfter 0.125%

The trustee and fund administration fees are subject to a8 monthly minimum of US$4,500.

Trustee and fund administration fees of US54, 146 weres chargad to the statement of
operations during the year. Trustee and fund administration fees payables of US$4,500 iz
included in liabilities as at 31 December 2023,

Balances/fransactions with the group company of the Trustee

During the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Inslitutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which is a group company of the Trustes of the Sub-fund, charged fransaction fees
of US%1,682 for handling each purchase or sale of investments.

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited ("HSBC"®), which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, in
its purchase and sale of investmants. Details of such transactions exacuted and fees paid
are set out below:

Valie of fransactions Commission and other
aexecuted through HSBC fees paid to HSBC
LSs Uss

Year 2023 - -
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Related party transactions (continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may also maintain cash
deposits which were held as collateral for transactions involving borrowed securities with
HSBC during the year. No cash deposits and securities were held or pledged as collateral
as al 31 December 2023. Other information relating to the transactions/balances with HSBC
is sel out below:

2023

uss

Investments held with custodian 4,378,275

Bank accounts
Bank balance 359 802
Interest income 2,128
Bank charges {571)
Professional foes (6,850)
Units in issue

Number of

units

2023

As al 1 January 10,476
Izsue of units 10
Redemption of units (875)
As al 31 December 8,611

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right o receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings of the
Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right to one vate for each such unit
registered in his name. The holders are entitled to receive all dividends declared and paid by
the Sub-fund. Upon winding up, the halders are entitled to a retum of capital based on the
net assets value per unit of the Sub-fund.

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distribution of incomse will
be made from the Sub-fund, unless ctharwise determined by the Manager.

24

83/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Value Parfners Intalliges! Fends
- JA-VP China New Canlury Fund
Financiul stdwments for the pear ended 37 Desember 2023

Soft commission arrangements

The Manager andlar any company associated with it and its delegates may enter into sofl
dollarsicommigsgion sharing arrangements with brokers through which brokerage transaclions
are entered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may recelve, and is
entitled to retain, research products and services (known as soft dollar benefits) which are of
damonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund (as may be permitted under applicable rules and
regulations) from brokers and other persons through whom invastment transactions ara
carried out (the "brokers"). Soft dollars may be received from them provided that the quality
of transaction exacution is consistent with best exacution standards and brokarage rates are
nat in excess of the customary full-service brokerage rates.

Such soft dollar benefits may include research and advisory services; economic and political
analysis; portfolio analysis, including valuation and performance measurement; market
analysis, data and quotalion services and sofiware incidental to the above goods and
services; clearing and custodian services and invesiment related publications. For the
avoidance of doubt, soft dollar benefits do not include travel, accommodation, entertainmeant,
general administrative goods and services, general office equipment or premises,
membership fees, employee salaries or direct money payments.

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed ralevant in detarmining whether a
broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to brokers based
on the range and overall quality of services offered by the broker. The core factors in
determining the quality of services are the execution performance and capabilily of the
broker. Other factors, such as the quality and quantity of research and investment ideas
offerad, access to potential investes companies and commission rate charges, would also be
taken into consideration. Soft dollar benefits received from brokers should not be a
determinant factor on allocating orders among brokers. The Manager has implemented
policies and procedures to ensure that transactions executed with brokers pursuant to a soft
dallar commission sharing arangament are conducted in the best execution standard. Soft
dollars benefits received by the Manager are used to facilitate in the Manager’s investment
management process, such benefits assist the Manager in fulfilling its overall duly lo clients
and may be used in servicing any or all of the Manager's client accounts over which the
Manager exercises investment discretion. The Manager does not usually attempt to
allocate/attribute the soft dollar benefits to individual client account, as goods and services
obiained may be baneficial to all clients in general, including those client accounts that do not
generate credit to acquire the soft dollar benefils.

Faor the year ended 31 December 2023, the Manager obtained research and advisory
garvices; economic and political analysis; portiolio and market analysis, data and quotation
services and software incidental to the above goods and services; and investment related
publications through =oft dollar arrangements on {ransactions amounting ta US$1 495,024
(2022: US$4,526,137). Commission which amounted to US$2,103 (2022: US$6,793) is paid
for these transactions.
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Fair value

The Sub-fund's investments are carried at fair value on the statement of assets and liabilties.
The carmying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value due to
the immediate or short-term nature of these financial instruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measure the fair value of its investments on a
recurming basis. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Cedification
Tapic 820 {FASE ASC Topic 820) defines fair value, establishes a consistent framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements.
FASE ASC Topic 820, among other things, reguires the Sub-fund to maximise the use of
obzervable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable input when measuring fair value.

Fair value hierarchy

FASE ASC Topic 820 specifias a hierarchy of valuation technigues based on whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or unobservable. The Sub-fund utilises
valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Sub-fund datermines fair value based on
assumptions that market participants weuld use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal
or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair
value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between observable
and unchservable inputs, which are categorised in one of the following levels:

- Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (l.e. derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similarinstruments;
quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are considerad less than
active; or other valuation techniguas in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

= Level 3 Inputs thal are unobservable. This category includes all instruments for which the
valuation technigue includes inputs not based on chservable data and the uncbservable
inpuls have a significant effect on the instrument's valuation. This categery includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments but for which
significant unobservable adjustmenls or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.
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Fair value {continued)

Determination of fair value

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investments
measured at fair value.

When available and for quoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted market
prices in active markets to determine falr value, and classifies such items in Level 1.

In some cases where a market price is available and relevant to measura the fair value of a
particular investment, the Sub-fund will calculate the fair value of such investment by
reference to such market price, in which case the items are classified in Level 2.

If quoted market prices are not available, falr value is based upon internally developad
valuation technigues that use, where possible, current market-based or independently
sourced market parameters, such as interest rates, currency rates, option volatilities, etc.
Items valued using such intemally generated valuation fechnigues are classified according to
the lowest level input or value driver that is significant o the valuation. Thus, an item may be
classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that are raadily
observable, including market comparahbles of listed companies.

Items measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table presents for each of the falr value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's
investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31 December 2023,

2023

With

Quoted Quoted significant

markel observable  unobservable

price Inputs inputs
{Laval 1) {Lavel 2] {Leval 3)* Total
Uss uss uss USs

Assets

Equity securities 4,232 570 - - 4,232,570
Participation note - 145,705 - 145,705
Total 4,232 570 145,705 - 4 378275

There wera no transfers batween Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy during the year.

The investment in Real Gold Mining Lid. (166,500 shares) as at 37 December 2023 is

classified as level 3 investments since there [ no abservable inputs from the markel. It is
suspended and delisted shares and the managernent eslimale thal the fair value is

considered as zero,
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9  Financial highlights

Operating performance per unit:
2023
Uss
Met asset value per unit as at 1 January 563.04
Income from investment operations:
Met investment loss (9.35)
Met realised and unrealised losses on investments and
foreign exchange losses (64.58)
Total loss from Investment operatons | {3 _3_511_ }
MNet asset value per unit as at 31 December 48913
Total return:
Total retum before parformance fee (13.13%)
Performance fee i
Total return after perfformance fee (13.13%)
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets:
Met investment loss befare pedformance fee {1.68%)
Performance fee E
Met investment loss after performance fea (1.88%)
Ratio of expenses to average net assets:
Expanses before performance fee 4.39%
Perfarmance fee =
Total expensas 4.35%
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Financial highlights {(continued)

Met Invesiment loss from investment operations per unit is calculated based on average
number of units outstanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Total refurn is calculated by comparing the anding net asset value ("NAV") per unit to the
beginning MAY per unit. An individual invesior's retum may vary from these based on the
timing of capilal transactions.

Expense ratio is calculated for the Sub-fund as a whole. An individual investor's ratios may
vary from these rafios based on the timing of capital transactions.

Indemnification

In the normal course of business, the Sub-fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of

representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund's maximum exposure
under these agreements is unknown as this would involva future claims that may be against

the Sub-fund that have not yet occumred. However, based on experience, the Sub-fund
expects the risk of loss to be remate.

Subsequent events

These financial statements were approved by management on 26 April 2024, Subsequent
events have been evaluated through this date.

From the period from 1 January 2024 to 268 April 2024, the Sub-fund did not receive any
subscription but redemption of 223 units which amounted to US3105,530.
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2023

% of
Holdings  Fair value nel assels
ussg

Listed equity securities
Hong Kong (cost: US$ 4,423,566)
Banks
China Construction Bank Corp H Shares 245,000 145,842 .10
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd H Shares 10,500 36,561 078
Capital Goods
China Railway Construction Corp Ltd H Shares 185,000 109,652 2.33
China Railway Group Lid H Shares 209,000 93,108 1.98
Techtronic Indusiries Co Ltd 4,500 53,803 1.14
Consumer Discrefionary Distribution & Retail
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 23,900 231,304 4,92
Luk Fook Holdings {Intemational) Ltd 13,000 34,865 0.74
Consumer Durables & Apparel
AMTA Sports Producls Ltd 6,000 58,183 1.24
Bosldeng Intermational Holdings Ltd 118,000 53,021 1.13
Li Ming Co Ltd 12,000 32108 068
Consumer Services
Galaxy Entertainment Group Lid 8,000 44,805 0.85
Meituan 6,480 87,938 1.45
*um China Holdings Inc 2,400 102,064 217
Energy
CNOOQC Ltd 72000 119,823 255
Financial Services
China International Capital Corp Ltd H Shares 50,000 73,353 156
Hong Kong Exchanges & Clearing Ltd 2,300 TE,908 168
Food, Beverage & Tobacco
China Mengniu Dairy Co Lid 7,000 18,818 0.40
First Pacific Co Ltd 178,000 70,8687 1.51
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2023 (Continued)

% of
Holdings  Fairvalue nef assets
Uss

Listed equity securities
Hong Kong (cost: US$ 4,423,566)
Food, Beverage & Tobacco (Continued)
Missin Focds Co Lid 150,000 120,015 2.55
Insurance
AlA Group Ltd 18,000 165,518 352
China Pacific Insurance (Group) Co Ltd H Shares 26,400 53,263 1.3
Ping An Insurance (Group) Co of China Ltd H Shares 26,500 119,922 2.55
Materials
China BlueChemical Ltd H Shares 376,000 84 824 2.02
Mineral Resources
Real Gold Mining Ltd 165,500
Media & Enteriainment
NetEase Inc 5,200 93,595 1.93
Tencent Holdings Ltd 11,200 420,956 8.95
Pharmaceulicals, Biotechnology & Life Sciences
Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Co Lid 61,000 94,801 2.02
Real Estate Management & Development
China Resources Land Lid 12,000 43,013 0.91
Software & Services
Chinasoft International Ltd 44 000 33,740 0.72
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Kingboard Holdings Lid 20,500 49 022 1.04
ZTE Corp H Shares 18,800 44 205 0.84
Telecommunicaltion Services
China Mobile Ltd 29,500 244 716 521
China Telecom Corp Ltd H Shares 254,000 121,610 2.589
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Investment schedule

As at 31 December 2023 (Continued)

Listed equity securities (Continued)
Hong Kong (cost: US54,423,566) (Continued)

Transportation

Kerry Logistics Network Ltd

Litifities

China Longyuan Power Group Corp Ltd H Shares

Total Hong Kong listed equity securitles in long
position

China (cost: US$220,626)
Capital Goods

Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligant Controls Co Ltd A Shares
{SZHK)

Food, Beverage & Tobacco

Kweichow Moutal Co Lid A Shares (SHHK)
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% of
net
Fairvalue assels
uss

28,990 0.64

28,798 081
3,182,811 B7.70

47 106 1.00

76,172 1.62
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2023 (Continued)

% of
Holdings  Fair value net assels
USS
Listed equity securities (Continued)
China (cost: US$220,626)
Health Care Equipment & Services
Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical Electronics Co Ltd A
Shares (SZHK) 700 28,580 0,61
Technofogy Hardware & Equipment
Maxscend Microelectronics Co Lid A Shares (SZHK) 3,680 72531 1.54
Total China listed equity securities in long
pasition 224,399 4.77
Taiwan {cost: US$371,237)
Automobiles & Components
Tong Yang Industry Cao Ltd 18,000 458,870 1.00
Capital Goods
Suncnwealth Electric Machine Industry Co Ltd B,000 20,980 0.45
Semiconductors & Semiconducior Equipment
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Co Ltd 8,000 154,312 3.28
Technology Hardware & Equipment
Gigabyte Technalogy Co Lid 10,000 86,524 1.84
Micro-Slar International Ca Ltd 8,000 53,0835 1.13
Wistron NeWeb Corp E,000 30,445 0.65
Yageo Corp 1,000 19,419 0.41
Total Taiwan listed equity securities in long
position 411,738 8.76
The United States of America (cost: US$ 227,280)
Consumer Services
TAL Education Group ADR 5.503 88,503 1.48
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Investment schedule
As at 31 December 2023 (Continued)

% of
Holdings Farr value  nel assels
uss
The United States of America (cost:
USS 227,280} Continued)
Retailing
PDC Haldings inc ADR 2,352 344,121 7.32
Total The United States of America listed equity
securities in long position 413,624 8.80
Total listed equity securities in long position (cost:
USS 5,242, 709) 4232570 90.03
Participation note in long position {cost:
Uss142,813)
CICC Financia! Trading Ltd (Kweichow Moutai Co Lid
A Shares) P-note 1214/20268 00 145,705 3.10
Total participation note in long position 145,705 3.10
Total investments in long position
{cost: US$ US$5,385,522) 4 378,275 93.13
Cash and cash equivalents 358,892 7.68
Other net llabllities (37,081} l[_ﬂ.?ﬂ]l

Total net assets 4,701,076 100.00
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2022 12 31
2022

7,101,232 5(d), 8 5,836,065 915,795,320

4,277 671,147

5(d) 102,889 16,145,342
e 5,943,231 932,611,809

5(a) 7,805 1,224,761

5(c) 4,355 683,387

32,646 5,122,810
. <3 N 7,030,958

5,898,425 925,580,851

6 10,476
9 563.04 88,352
2023 24

29 30 35
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2022 12 31
2022

17,068 194,057 30,451,424
5(d) 133 20,870
3 471

e 194,198 ____. 30,472,766

5(a) (103,167) (16,188,966)

5(c) (54,000) (8,473,680)

5(d), 7 (15,156) (2,378,280)

5(d) (68,706) (10,781,346)

(30, 331) (4,759,541)

5(d) (1,140) (178,889)

(1,997) (313, 369)

(1,169) (183, 439)

(17,908) (2,810,123)

_______ (293,574) ____(46,067,632)

________ (99,38L) ____(15,594,867)

(1,197,549) (187,919, 389)

(919,533) (144,293,118)

(11,746) (1,843,182)

oo (2,128,828) (334,055,690)

(2,228,209) (349,650, 556)
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2022 12 31
2022

(1,197,549) (187,919, 389)

(919,533) (144,293,118)

(11,746) (1,843,182)

(99,381) (15,594, 867)
oo...(2,228,209)  _( (349,650,556)

(220,243) (34,560,532)
_______ (220,243) ____(34,560,532)

(2,448,452) (384,211,088)

8,346,877 1,309,791,939

5,898,425 925,580,851
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JA-VP
2022 12 31
2022
230,452 36,162,528
124 19,458
3 471
5,153,305 808,656,621
(4,862,985) (763,099, 606)
(17,068) (2,678,311)
(307,312) (48,223,399)
(1,165) (182,812)
e 195,354~ ____ 30,654,950
(220,243) (34,560,532)
_______ (220,243) ____(34,560,532)
(24,889) (3,905,582)
127,778 20,050,924
102,889 16,145,342

30 35

97/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

JA VP
2022 12 31
2000
21
2000 30
2022 12 31
JA VP
JA VP
2000 17 2002 2003 11 27
JA VP
2022 12 31
2022
120,418,293
153,370,839
JA VP 5,898,425

98/280

279,687,557




GAAP

946

US GAAP

FASB
ASC946

99/280

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

us
US GAAP
ASC



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

101/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

102/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022

897,003
104,933
317,226
1,319,162

12

2022 12 31

103/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 12 31
2022 12 31
Kweichow Moutai
2024 Co Ltd A Shares 149,226 (46,050)
2022 12 31
A 149,226 149,226 149,226
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HSBC

410,019 589

HSBC
2022 12 31

2022
5,836,065
102,889
133

(1,140)

(6,650)

2022
10,869
(393)

10,476
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149,226 149,226
5,686,839 149,226 5,836,065

2022 12 31 Real Gold Mining Ltd. 166,500
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(9.49)
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(26.69)
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Value Padners inteligent Funds
= JA-VP China New Century Fund
Finamcial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

Note 2022
uss

Assets
Investment in securities, at fair value (cost; US57,101,232) 5(d), 8 5,836,065
Dividends and interest receivable 4277
Cash and cash equivalents 5(d) 102,889
Total assets 5.943,22
Liabilities
Investment management fees payable 5(a) 7,805
Trustee and fund administration payable 5(c) 4,355
Accrued expenses and other payables 32,646
Total liabilities o 44 806
Met assets 5,898 425
Number of units in issue B 10,476
Net asset value per unit 9 563.04
Approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on 24 April 2023,
Signed by
Value Partners Limited, Manager HSBC Tmst:ae (Cayman) Limited, Trustee

The notes on pages 11 to 29 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 35 form part of

these financial statements.
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Walua Partners inteligent Funds
= JA=VF Ching New Century Fumd
Financial stadements for the year ended 31 Decornbar 2022

Statement of operations
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Mote

Dividend income (net of withholding tax of USE17 068)
Interest income S(d)
{Other income

Investment management fees 5(a)
Trustee and fund administration fees 5(c)
Transaction fees 5(d).7
Professional fees 5(d)
Auditors’ remuneration

Bank charges S(d)
Annual fees

Interest expenses

Other operating expenses

Net investment loss

Met realised [osses on investments
Met unrealised losses on investments
Met foreign exchange losses

Met realised and unrealised losses on investments and
foreign exchange losses

MNet decrease in net assets resulting from operations

(103,167)
(54,000)
(15,156)
(68,706)
(30,331)

(1,140)
(1,097)
(1,169)
(17,908)

(293,574)

(1,197,548}
(919,533)
(11,746}

(2.128,828)

(2,228,209)

The notes on pages 11 to 28 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 35 form part of

these financial statements.
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Value Pariners infelipent Funas
- JA-VP China Mew Cantury Fung

Financial stafemenis for the year ended 37 December 2022

Statement of changes in net assets
for the year ended 31 December 2022

MNet realised loss on investments

MNet unrealised losses on investments
Met foreign exchange losses

Met investment loss

Met decrease in net assets resulting from operations

Units redeemed

Net decrease In net assets resulting from capital transactions

MNet decrease in net assets
Net assets
Beginning of year

End of year

2022
uss

(1,197.549)
(919,533)
{11,746}
(99,381)

(2228209

(220,243)

(220,243)

(2,448,452)

8,346,877
5,898,425

The notes on pages 11 to 29 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 35 form part of

these financial statements.
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- JE=WP Civing New Camtury Fund
Financial statements lor the year ended 37 Decambar 2022

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

UssH
Operating activities
Dividends received 230,452
Interest received 124
Other income received 3
Proceeds from sale of investmeants 5,153,305
Payments on purchase of investments (4,862 985)
Tax paid (17,068)
Operating expenses paid (307,312}
Interast paid {1,165}
MNet cash generated from operating activities 195,354
Financing activities
Payments on redemption of units (220,243)
Met cash used in financing activities (220,243)
MNet decrease in cash and cash equivalents (24,889)
Cash and cash equivalents [unrestricted) at beginning of year 127,778
Cash and cash equivalents {unrestricted) at end of year 102,889

The notes on pages 11 to 28 and the investment schedule on pages 30 to 35 form part of

these financial statements.
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Valus Padners integent Funds
= J4-VP China New Cenluvy Fumd
Firancial siatamants for the year snded 31 Decamber 2022

Notes to the financial statements

General

Value Partners Intelligent Funds {(the “Trust") is an open-ended umbrella unit trust
established under the laws of the Cayman Islands pursuant to a Trust Deed dated 21 June
2000, as amended from time to time (the "Trust Deed"), as amended. The Trust registered
under the Mutual Funds Act of the Cayman Islands on 30 June 2000,

The Trust is able to issue units in various sub-funds and as at 31 December 2022, China
Convergence Fund, JA-VP China New Century Fund and Chinese Mainland Focus Fund
have been launched. China Convergence Fund, JA-VP China Mew Century Fund and
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund commenced operations on 17 July 2000, 7 March 2002 and
27 November 2003 respectively.

These financial statements have been prepared for the JA-VP China Mew Century Fund (the
“Sub-fund®). The financial statements of China Convergence Fund and Chinese Mainland
Focus Fund have been prepared separately and consequently are not included in these
financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the combined net assets of the Trust are as follows:

Combined

Name of sub-funds nel asseis
2022

LSS

China Convergence Fund 120,418,293
Chinese Mainland Focus Fund 153,370,839
JA-VP China Mew Century Fund 5,898,425
Value Partners Intelligent Funds 279,687,557

The investment activities of the Sub-fund are managed by Value Partners Limited (the
"Manager”) and the administration of the Sub-fund is handled by HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited (the “Administrator”) who has delegated its role to HSBC Institutional Trust Service
{Asia) Limited.

The objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with medium to long-term capital
appreciation by investing in a diversified portfolio of enterprises which are either (i) owned by
private sector interests in the Greater China Region; or {ii) considered by the Manager to
have the majority of their assets situated in, or the majority of their income derived from
operations in the Greater China Region.

11
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Vaiue Partrers Intelgent Funds
- JA-VF Ching New Camdury Fund
Francial shatemants for the pear ended 31 December 2022

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles ("US GAAP"). The Sub-fund is considered an
investment company under US GAAP and follows the accounting and reporting guidance
applicable fo investment companies in Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASE’)
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 946, Financial Services - Investment Companies
{"ASC 9467). The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-fund are as follows:

Basis of preparation

The measurement currency of the financial statements is United States dellars ("US$" or
"USD") reflecting the fact that most of the transactions are denominated in USD as well as
Hong Kong dollars (*HKD") which is pegged to USD. Units of the Sub-fund are issued and
redeemed in USD and any distributions to investors will also be in USD.

The financial statements are presented in USD.
Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with US GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of income and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Forefgn currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate ruling
at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated to USD at the foreign currency closing exchange rate ruling at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilites. Foreign currency exchange differences
relating to investments are included in gains and losses on investments. All other foreign
currency exchange differences relating to monetary items, including cash and cash
equivalents are presented as net foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of
operations. Foreign currency exchange differences arising on realised gains and losses on
disposals or setiements of investments are recognised in the statement of operations.

Investments
Clasgsification
Investments consist of equity securities and participation note. The Sub-fund classifies all its

investments held for trading, which are bought and held principally for the purpese of selling
them in the near term.

i2
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Walve Partners indeifigent Funds
- JA=VP China New Cantury Fund
Financial slatements for the year ended 37 Decamber 2022

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d} Investments (continued)
(i}  Recognition

The Sub-fund recognises investments on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A regular way purchase of financial assets is recognised using trade date accounting. From
this date any gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities are recorded.

Financial liabilities are not recognised unless one of the parfies has performed their
obligations under the contract.

(iii} Fair value measurement principles

"Fair value" is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal
or, in its absence, the most advantageous market to which the Sub-fund has access at that
date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

When available, the Sub-fund measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as “active” if transactions
for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis. The Sub-fund measures instruments quoted in an active
market at a last traded price, bacause this price provides a reasonable approximation of the
exit price.

The Sub-fund records derivative contracts at fair value. Changes in the fair value of
derivative contracts are recorded as unrealised gains and losses The Sub-fund generally
records a realised gain or [oss on the expiration, termination, or settlement of a dervative
contract.

If there is no quated price in an active market, then the Sub-fund uses valuation technigues
that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable
inputs. The chosen valuation technigue incorporates all of the factors that market
participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.

Investments in other unlisted investment funds are recorded at the net asset value per share
as reported by the administrators of such funds.

13
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Financial sialements for the pear ended 37 Decembner 2022

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Investments (continued)
(iv) Impairment

Financial assets that are stated at cost or amorised cost are reviewed at the date of each
statement of assets and liabilities to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such indication exists, an impairment loss is recognised in the statement
of operations as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairmeant loss recognised on a financial asset
carried at amortised cost decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the write-down, the write-down is reversed through the statement of
operations.

(v} Derecognition

The Sub-fund uses the weighted average method to determine realised gains and losses on
derecognition,

{e} [Inferestincome and expense

Interest income and expense is recognised in the statement of operations as it accrues,
using the original effective interest rate of the instrument calculated at the acquisition or
origination date. Interest income and expense includes the amortisation of any discount or
premium, transaction costs or other differences between the initial carrying amount of an
interest-bearing instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effective interest rate
basis.

(f)  Dividend income and expense
Dividend income relating to exchange-traded equity securities and dividend expense relating
to securities sold short are recognised in the statement of operations on the ex-dividand
date.
In some cases, the Sub-fund may choose to receive dividends in the form of additional
shares rather than cash. In such cases the Sub-fund recognises the dividend income for the
amount of the cash dividend alternative with the corresponding debit treated as an additional
investment.

{g) Expenses

All expenses are recognised in the statement of operations on an accrual basis.

14
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Valupe Fardners Infeligant Funds
= JA-VP China New Centiny Fund
Financial siafements for the year ended 31 December 2022

Significant accounting policies {continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash denominated in foreign currencies, represents
cash deposits held at financial institutions, Cash and cash equivalents include short-term
highly liquid investments of sufficient credit quality that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and have original maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash
equivalents are carried at cost, plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value, Cash
and cash equivalents are held for meeting short-term liquidity requirements, rather than for
investment purposes. All cash and cash equivalents are unrestricted.

Taxation

Under the current system of taxation in the Cayman Islands, the Sub-fund is exempt from
paying taxes on income, profits or capital gains. The Trust has received an undertaking from
the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from tax In the Cayman Islands.

Dividend and interest income received by the Sub-fund may be subject to withholding tax
imposed in the country of arigin. Investment income is recorded net of withholding tax and is
recognised in the statement of operations as incurred. Refer to note 4 for more details,

Refated parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Sub-fund if they have the ability, directly or indirectly, to control or exercizse significant
influence over the Sub-fund in making financial and operating decisions. Related parties
may be individuals or entities.

Offsetting of assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of assets and liabilities when, and only when, the Sub-fund has a legal right to

offset the amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
sattle the liabllity simultan=ously.

Income and expenses are presented on a net basis for net realised gains and change in
realised losses on investments and foreign currencies.

15
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Value Partners Inletigant Funds
= J&4-VP China Mew Century Fund
Financial sftatements for e year ended 31 December 2022

Financial instruments and associated risks

The Sub-fund maintains positions in a variety of derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments as dictated by its investment management strategy. The Sub-fund’s investments
comprise equity securities and participation note.

The Sub-fund's investing activities expose it to various types of risk that are associated with
the financial instruments and markets in which it invests. The most important types of
financial risk to which the Sub-fund is exposed to are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Asset allocation is determined by the Manager who manages the distribution of the assets to
achieve the investment objective. Divergence from target asset allocations and the
composition of the portfolio is monitored by the Manager.

The nature and extent of the financial instruments outstanding at the date of the statement of
assets and liabiliies and the risk management policies employed by the Sub-fund are
discussed below.

Market risk

Market risk embodies the potential for both losses and gains and includes currency risk,
interest rate risk and price risk.

The Sub-fund's strategy on the management of Investment risk is driven by the Sub-fund's
investment objective. The investment objective of the Sub-fund is to provide unitholders with
medium to long-term capital appreciation (in USD terms). The Sub-fund's market risk is
managed on a daily basis by the Manager in accordance with policies and proceduras in
place. The Sub-fund's overall market positions are monitored on a timely basis by the
Manager.

Details of the Sub-fund's investment portfolio as at the date of the statement of assets and
liabilities are disclosed in the investment schedule. All individual investmants are disclosed
separately.

Cumency risk

The Sub-fund may invest in financial instruments and enter into transactions denaminated in
currencies other than its functional currency. Consequently, the Sub-fund is exposed to risks
that the exchange rate of its currency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a
manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that portion of the Sub-fund's assets or
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the USD.

The Sub-fund is not subject to significant amounts of currency risk because most of the
assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD which is pegged to the USD.

16
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Value Partners infeligent Funds
- JA8-¥F Ching New Cantury Fund
Financial slotements for the pear ansed 31 Decamber 2022

3  Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
fa) Market risk {continued)
(i)  Currency risk (continued)

The Sub-fund's total net exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates as at the
date of the statement of assets and liabilities was as follows:

Net exposure
2022
uss

Chinese Yuan 897,003

Singapore dollar 104,933
New Taiwan doliar 317,226

1,319,162

The Sub-fund does not expect any significant movements in the HKD/USD exchange rate as
the HKD is pegged to the USD and accordingly the HKD foreign currency assets and
liabilities have been excluded on the above analysis,

(il Interest rate rigk
The majority of the Sub-fund’s financial assets and liabilities are non-interest-bearing.

All interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities mature or reprice in the short-term, no
longer than twelve months. As a result, the Sub-fund is subject to limited exposure to fair
value interest rate risk due to fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.
Any excess cash and cash equivalents of the Subfund are invested in short-term
instruments.

(iiy  Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of the instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether caused by factors specific to an individual investment, its issuer or all
factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

As the majority of the Sub-fund's financial instruments are carried at fair value with fair valug
changes recognised in the statement of operations, all changes in market conditions will
directly affect net assets resulting from operations and the financial instruments' carrying
amounts on the statement of assets and liabilities.

Price risk Is mitigated by the Manager by constructing a diversified portfolio of instruments
traded on various markets. In addition, price risk may be hedged using derivative financial
instruments such as options, warrants or futures.
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3 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
abligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk generally is
higher when a non-exchange-traded financial instrument Is involved, because the
counterparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

Credit rigk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an
obligation or commitment that it has entered into with the Sub-fund. Credit risk ganarally is
higher when a non-exchange-fraded financial instrument is involved, because the
counterparty is not backed by an exchange clearing house.

The Sub-fund's exposure to credit risk is monitored by the Manager an an ongoing basis.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to fransaclions awaiting settlement.
Risk relating to unsettled transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period
invalved.

The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure on
the statement of assets and liabilities.

As at 31 Decamber 2022, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk to
counterparties except to the custodian. Substantially all the financial instruments are cleared
through and held in custody primarily by one major intemational institution. The Sub-fund is
subject to credit risk to the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfil its obligations
either to return the Sub-fund's securities or repay amounts owed. The insftitution is rated Aa3
per credit ratings lssued by Moody's. The Sub-fund does not anticipate any losses as a result
of this concentration.

(e} Liquidity risk

The Sub-fund’s Explanatory Memaorandum provides for the daily creation and cancellation of
units and it is therefore exposed to the liquidity risk of meeting unitholder redemptions at any
time.

The Sub-fund invested in a closed-ended fund which is net traded in an organised public
market. The Sub-fund also invested in an equity which is suspended and delisted from
trading as at year end. These investments generally might be illiquid. As a result, the Sub-
fund might not be able to liquidate these investments quickly at an amount close to its fair
value in order to meet its liquidity requirements, or to respond to specific events such as
deterioration in the creditworthiness of any paricular issuer,

The Sub-fund predominantly invested in listed equity securities which are considered to be
readily realisable as they are all listed on major stock exchanges.
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3 Financial instruments and associated risks (continued)
{d) Derivative contracts

As at 31 December 2022, the Sub-fund's holding in parlicipation note as specified in the
following table:

As at 31 December 2022

Amounis indluded in the

statament of operations
Charig in
Long exposure Realised trrealised
Tvpe of contract Expiration Undertying Fair valus gainioss gaidess
Uss UsE Uss
Kweichow Moutai Co
Farticipation note 1 April 2024 Lid A Shares 148,225 - (48,0500

The participation note disclosed above is the only derivative contract that the Sub-fund
entered.

(e) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Mone of the financial assets and financial liabilities is offset in the statement of financial
position,

The enforceable master netting arangements do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
statement of assets and liabilities. This is because they create a right of set-off of recognised
amounts that is enforceable only following on event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the Sub-fund or its counterparties, In addition, the Sub-fund and its counterparties do not
intend lo settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilties simultanesusly.

The gross amounts of recognised financial assets and financial liabilities and their net
amounts presented in the statement of assets and liabilities have been measured in the
statement of assets and liabilities at fair value.

As at 31 December 2022

Financial assels subject fo enforceable master nefting amangements

Gross
TS
of recogrised Mal smounia
il af fruarcal
Gmss  Sahifles offiel assels of fapngial
amouns in {rag prosenied i mirumants
of focognised shatmmgn! Lhe stodament (Enciing Caxh
fngncind  of pesols and of assals and rn-cash coliptoraf Mot
assals EabiBsas Sakbsas colaterafl recelved amewunt
uss uss USs uss uss uss
Dbrrredetives: Frarscil nslruments:
- Caunlerparty A 149,220 . 148,228 - - 148,226
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Financia! slatements for the year anded 31 December 2022

4  Taxation

fa) There are no taxes on income or gains in the Cayman Islands as the Trust has received an
undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands exempting it from all local
income, profite and capital gains taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income faxes is
included in these financial statements.

fb) The Sub-fund recognises the tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only where the position is
more likely than not (i.e. greater than 50 percent) to be sustained assuming examination by a
taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. In evaluating whether a tax
position has met the recognition threshold, the Sub-fund must presume that the position will
be examined by the appropriate faxing authority that has full knowledge of all relevant
information. A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition threshold is
measured to determine the amount of benefit to recognise in the Sub-fund's financial
statements. Income tax and related interest and penalties would be recognised by the Sub-
fund as tax expense in the statement of operations if the tax positions were deemed to not
meet the more likely than not threshold.

The Sub-fund analyses all open tax years for all major taxing jurisdictions. Open tax years
are those that are open for exam by taxing authorities, as defined by the Statute of
Limitations in each jurisdiction. The Sub-fund identifies its major tax jurisdictions as the
Cayman |slands and foreign jurisdictions where the Sub-fund makes significant investments.
The Sub-fund has no examinations by taxing autherities in progress.

Management has analysed the Sub-fund's tax positions, and has concluded that no liability
for unrecognised tax benefits should be recorded related to uncertain tax positions. Further,
managemant is not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the
total amounts of unrecognised tax benefits will significantly change in the next twelve
months.

{e) The Profits Tax Exemption for Offshore Funds Ordinance (“the Offshore Funds Ordinance”)
came into effect on 10 March 2006 and has been amended on 17 July 2015, Under the
Offshore Funds Ordinance, exemption from Hong Kong profits tax is granted to non-resident
persons in respect of profits from specified transactions carried out through or arranged by
certain specified persons in any year of assessment on or after 1 April 1996.

Effective from 1 April 2019, the Inland Revenue (Profits Tax Exemption for Funds)
(Amendment) Ordinance (collectively referred as “the Funds Exempfion Ordinances”)
provides profits tax exemption for funds whether or not the central management and control
of the funds is exercised in Hong Kong subject to certain conditions. The Manager belisves
that they have implemented steps to enable the Sub-fund to meet the exemption criteria
under the Funds Exemption Ordinances. If the Sub-fund does not meet the exemption
eriteria under the Funds Exemption Ordinances, the Sub-fund is exposed to Hong Kong
profits tax at a rate of 16.5% in respect of any profits which arise in or are derived from Hong
Kaong and which are not capital profits or exempt profits if it is treated as carrying on a trade
or business in Hong Kong either on its own account or through any person as an agent.
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4  Taxation (continued)

(d} In preparing these financial statements, the Manager has made certain assumptions and
used various estimates concerning the tax exposure which is dependent on what might
happen in the future. The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual
results.

The Sub-fund invests in derivative instruments linked to "A” shares, issued by one or more
Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors ("QFIIs") or their affiliates as well as “A” shares of
companies listed in the PRC, via the Manager's QF Il quota.

COn 14 November 2014, the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the "MoF"), the State
Administration of Taxation of the PRC ("SAT") and the China Securities Regulatory
Commission (the "CSRC") jointly issued the “Notice on tempaorary exemption of Corporate
Income Tax on capital gains derived from the transfer of equity investment assets such as
PRC domestic stocks by QFIl and RQFII" {the "MNotice™). According to the Motice, amongst
other things, QFlls and RQFlls, which do not have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC or have an establishment or place in the PRC but the income so derived in the PRC
is not effectively connected with such establishment, will be temporarily exempt from
corporate income tax on gains derived from the transfer of PRC equity invesiment assets
{including China “A" shares) effective from 17 November 2014, Accordingly, as at 31
December 2022, the Sub-fund had not made any provision for the tax on capital gains on
derivatives instruments linked to A" shares and China “A” shares on or after 17 November
2014 based on the Notice,

The Sub-fund also direclly invests in “B" shares of companies listed in the PRC for
subscription by foreign Investors and may be subject to PRC withholding tax of 10% on
dividend income. A 10% withholding tax may also be payable on the capital gains derived
from the sale of “B" shares. Under current PRC tax laws, gains derived from the transfer of
shares of PRC companies by non-residents should be subject to a withholding tax of 10%,
unless exempt under relevant tax treaties, The SAT has remained silent on the collection of
withholding tax for capital gains and until further clarification is issued by the SAT, the
Manager considers that there is significant uncertainty in respect of whether the Sub-fund
has any liability and the extent of such liability with respect to tax on capital gains derfved
from the sale of PRC “E” shares. In making this assessment, the Manager has considered (i)
the current position of the SAT, (i) the absence of a withholding mechanism of the relevant
tax and {iii) current market practice. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2022, the Sub-fund had
not made any provision for the tax on capital gains on "B" shares based on the above
judgments made by the Manager.

The Manager will continually reassess the withholding income tax provisioning approach on
an on-going basis taking into account any recent development in the market.

21

128/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Valee Partnsrs [meligent Funds

- JA-VP China New Cenfury Fund
Finameal statements for the year ended 31 December 2022

5 Related party transactions

The Sub-fund entered into the following material related party transactions for the year. All
such transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms.

(a) Investment management fees

The Manager, an investment management company incorporated in British Virgin Islands,
has implemented the investment strategy as specified in the Explanatory Memorandum.

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager receives a management fee
monthly in arrears at an annual rate of 1.6% of the net assets on each valuation day as
defined in the Explanatory Memorandum. An investment management fee of US$103,167
was charged to the statement of operations during the year. Invesiment management fees
payable of US$7 805 is included in liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

fb) Performance fees

Under the Investment Management Agreement, the Manager is also enlited to a
parformance fee, calculated at a high-on-high basis, if the net asset value per unit as at the
last valuation day of a calendar quarter (prior to the acerual of any performance fee for that
calendar quarter but including any distribution declared or paid in respect of the relevant
performance periods) exceads the higher of:

{i)  the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the last valuation day in the
last calendar quarter in respect of which a performance fee was paid to the Manager in
respect of the Sub-fund, after payment of such performance fee; and

(i) the initial offer price at which the units were first offered.

The rate of performance fees payable is 15% and is calculated by multiplying this fee rate by
the product of the excess of the net asset value per unit (calculated as stated above) and the
average of the number of units in issue immediately after each valuation day in the relevant

calendar quarter. Mo performance fees were charged to the statement of cperations during
the year. No performance fees payable as at 31 December 2022,
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5 Related party transactions (continued)
{c) Trustee and fund administration fees

With effect from 30 Aprl 2021, the Trustee is entified to monthly trustee and fund
administration fees which are determined based on the monthly net asset value of the Sub-

fund as below:

Trustes and
fund
administration
fee per annum
shown as % of
net asset value

Net assel value
First US%150 million 0.135%
Next USSE50 million 0.13%
Thereafter 0.125%

The trustee and fund administration fees are subject to a monthly minimum of US$4,500.

Trustee and fund administration fees of US5$54,000 were charged to the statement of
operations during the year. Trustee and fund administration fees payables of US$4 355 is
included in liabilities as at 31 December 2022,

(d) Balancesftransactions with the group company of the Trustee

During the year, the Custodian of the Sub-fund, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia)
Limited, which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, charged transaction fees
of US$2,475 for handling each purchase or sale of investments.

During the year, the Sub-fund utilised the services of The Hongkang and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited ("HSBC"), which is a group company of the Trustee of the Sub-fund, in
its purchase and sale of investments. Details of such transactions executed and fees paid
are set out below:

Value of
transaclions Commission
executed and ofher fees
through HSBC paid fo HSBC
UsSE uss

Year 2022 410,018 589
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Related party transactions (continued)
Balances/transactions with the group company of the Trusfee {continued)

The Sub-fund maintains bank accounts with HSBC. The Sub-fund may alse maintain cash
deposits which were held as collateral for transactions invelving borrowed securities with
HSBC during the year. Mo cash deposits and securities were held or pledged as collateral
as at 31 December 2022. Other information relating to the transactions/balances with HSBC
is set out below:

2022
uss
Investments held with custodian 5,836,065
Bank accounts
Bank balance 102 889
Interest income 133
Bank charges {1.140)
Professional fees {6,650)
Units in issue
Number of units
2022
As at 1 January 10,869
Redemption of units {393)
As at 31 December 1[},4?5

The rights attaching to each unit are as follows:

The holders of the units have the right to receive notice of, attend and vote at meetings of the
Sub-fund. The holder of each such unit has the right to one vote for each such unit
registered in his name. The holders are entitled to receive all dividends declared and paid by
the Sub-fund. Upon winding up, the holders are entitled to a return of capital based on the
net assets value per unit of the Sub-fund,

All distributable profits of the Sub-fund will be accumulated and no distribution of income will
be made from the Sub-fund, unless otherwise determined by the Manager.
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Soft commission arrangements

The Manager andfor any company associated with it and its delegates may enter into soft
dollarsfcommission sharing arrangaments with brokers through which brokerage transactions
are enfered on behalf of clients under management. The Manager may receive, and is
entitled to retain, research products and services (known as soft dollar benefits) which are of
demonstrable benefit to the Sub-fund (as may be permitted under applicable rules and
regulations) frem brokers and other persons through whom investment transaclions are
carried out (the “brokers”). Soft dollars may be received from them provided that the quality
of transaction execution is consistent with best execution standards and brokerage rates are
not in excess of the customary full-service brokerage rates.

Such soft daollar benefits may include research and advisary servicas; economic and palitical
analysis; portfolic analysis, including wvaluation and performance measurement; market
analysis, data and quotation services and software incidental to the above goods and
services, clearing and custodian services and investment related publications. For the
avoidance of doubt, soft dollar benefits do not include travel, accommodation, entertainment,
general administrative goods and services, general office equipment or premises,
membership fees, employvee salaries or direct money payments.

The Manager considers many judgemental factors deemed relevant in determining whether a
broker provides best execution. In general, investment orders are allocated to brokers based
an the range and overall quality of services offered by the broker. The core factors in
determining the quality of services are the execution performance and capability of the
broker. Other factors, such as the quality and guantity of research and investment ideas
offered, access to potential investee companies and commission rate charges, would also be
taken into consideration, Soft dollar benefits received from brokers should not be a
determinant factor on allocating orders among brokers. The Manager has implemented
policies and procedures to ensure that transactions executed with brokers pursuant to a soft
dollar commission sharing arangement are conducted in the best execution standard. Soft
dollars benefits received by the Manager are used to facilitate in the Manager's investment
management process, such benefits assist the Manager in fulfilling its overall duty to clients
and may be used in servicing any or all of the Manager's client accounts over which the
Manager exercises investment discretion. The Manager does not usually attempt to
allocatefattribute the soft dollar benefits to individual client account, as goods and services
obtained may ba beneficial to all clients in general, including those client accounts that do not
generate credit to acquire the soft dollar benefits.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Manager obtained research and advisory
services; economic and political analysis, porifolio and market analysis, data and guotation
services and software incidental to the above goods and services; and investment related
publications through soft dollar arrangements on transactions amounting to US$4,526,137.
Commission which amounted to US$6,793 is paid for these transactions,

25

132/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Value Fardners infeligent Funds
- JA-VP China New Cenlury Fund
Firanciol statements for the year ended 31 Decamber 2022

8 Fair value

The Sub-fund’s investments are carried at fair value on the statement of assets and liabilities.
The carrying amounts of other financial assets and liabilities approximate fair value due to
the immediate or short-term nature of these financial insfruments.

The Sub-fund utilises various methods to measure the fair value of its investments on a
recurring basis. Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 820 (FASE ASC Topic 820) defines fair value, establishes a consistent framawork for
measuring fair value and expands disclosure requirements about fair value measurements.
FASE ASC Topic 820, among other things, requires the Sub-fund to maximise the use of
observable inputs and minimise the use of unobsenvable input when measuring fair value.

fa) Fair value hierarchy

FASE ASC Topic 820 specifies a hierarchy of valuation technigues based on whether the
inputs to those valuation technigues are observable or unobservable. The Sub-fund utilises
valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of
unobservable inputs to the extent possible. The Sub-fund determines fair value based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability in the principal
or most advantageous market. When considering market participant assumptions in fair
value measurements, the following fair value hierarchy distinguishes between cbservable
and unobservable inputs, which are categorised in one of the following levels:

- Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
instruments.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for
similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets
that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques in which all
significant inputs are directly or indirectly chservable from market data.

- Level 3: Inputs that are unobservable. This category Includes all instruments for which
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument's valvation. This
category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant uncbservable adjustments or assumptions
are required to reflect diferences between the instruments.

26

133/280



(b)

(¢}

Fair value (continued)

Determination of fair value

EDINETOOOO

OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Virlue Parinars Inteliipent Funds
- JA4-VP China New Canfuvy Fund
Financial statamerds for the year ended 37 Decambar 2022

The Sub-fund measures fair value using the procedures set out below for the investments

measurad at fair value.

When available and for quoted investments, the Sub-fund generally uses quoted market
prices in active markets to determine fair value, and classifies such items in Level 1.

In some cases where a market price is available and relevant to measure the fair value of a
particular investment, the Sub-fund will calculate the fair value of such investmant by
reference to such market price, in which case the items are classified in Level 2.

If guoted market prices are not available, fair value is based upon internally developed
valuation technigques that use, where possible, current market-based or independently
sourced market parameters, such as interest rates, currency rates, option volatilities, ete,
Items valued using such intemally generated valuation technigues are classified according to
the lowest level input or value driver that is significant to the valuation. Thus, an item may be
classified in Level 3 even though there may be some significant inputs that are readily
observable, including market comparables of listed companies.

ftems measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table presents for each of the fair value hierarchy levels the Sub-fund's
investments that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at 31 December 2022,

2022

With

Quoted Quoted significant

marke! observable  unobservable

price inpuis inpuls
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3)* Total
USs uss uss Uss

Assets

Equity securities 5,686,839 - - 5,686,830
Participation note - 149 226 - 149,226
Total 5,686,839 149,226 - 5,836,065

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy during the year,

The invesiment in Real Gold Mining Lid. (166,500 shares) as af 31 December 2022 is
classified as level 3 investmenis since there is no observable inputs from the markel. If is
suspended and delisted shares and the management eslimate that the fair valve is

considered as zerm.
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Financial highlights

Operating performance per unit:

2022
uss
Met asset value per unit as at 1 January _767.95
Income from investment operations:
Net investment loss (9.48)
Met realised and unrealised losses on investments and
foreign exchange losses (195.42)
Total loss from investment cperafions L {ZM:?_E}
Met asset value per unit as at 31 December 563.04
Total return:
Total return before performance fee {26.69%)
Performance fee -
Total return after performance fee (26.69%)
Ratio of net investment loss to average net assets:
Met investment loss before performance fee (1.56%)
Performance fee =
Met investment loss after performance fee (1.56%:)
Ratio of expenses fo average nef assels:
Expenses before performance fee 4.62%
FPerformance fee -
Total expenses 4 B2%

MNet investment loss from investment operations per unit is calculated based on average
number of units outstanding of the Sub-fund for the year ended 31 December 2022,

Total return is calculated by comparing the ending net asset value ("NAV™) per unit to the
beginning NAV per unit. An individual investor's return may vary from these based on the
timing of capital transactions.

Expense ratio is calculated for the Sub-fund as a whole. An individual investor's ratios may
vary from these ratios based on the timing of capital transactions.
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10 Indemnification

In the nermal course of business, the Sub-fund enters into contracts that contain a variety of
representations which provide general indemnifications. The Sub-fund’s maximum exposure
under these agreements is unknown as this would involve future claims that may be against
the Sub-fund that have not yet occurred. However, based on experience, the Sub-fund
expects the risk of loss to be remote.

11 Subsequent events

These financial statements were approved by management on 24 April 2023. Subsequent
events have been evaluated through this date.

From the pericd from 1 January 2023 to 24 April 2023 (the reporting date), the Sub-fund did
not receive any subscription of units but redemption of 237 units which amounted to
US5143,043.
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2024
4,743,393.66 744,333,333
55,640.62 8,731,126
4,687,753.04 735,602,207
9,388
499.33 78,355
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2024
14,623,428 11,854,704
18,893,318 15,302,777
293,199,731 237,686,815
2019 12 31 11,854,704
2020 12 31 11,854,704
2021 12 31 11,854,704
2022 12 31 11,854,704
2023 12 31 11,854,704
VPGL
VPGL

Cheah Cheng Hye

Ho Man Kei

So Chun Ki

Louis
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2023 12 31
2023 2022

11 2,059 41,283 4,090 82,005
19 43,747 877,127 25,485 510,974
12 10,480 210,124 12,469 250,003
13 1,388,300 27,835,415 875,780 17,559,389
6,953 139,408 8,838 177,202
17 2,151 43,128 1,603 32,140
1,453,690 29,146,485 928,265 18,611,713
26.3 21,502 431,115 35,205 705,860
13 3,293 66,025 8,229 164,991
14 3,816 76,511 4,300 86,215
14,922 299,186 11,245 225,462

42,953 225,462
15 38,239 766,692 303,777 6,090,729
124,725 2,500,736 362,756 7,273,258
26.3 579,504 11,619,055 165,452 3,317,313
3,271 65,584 8,977 179,989
18 3,273 65,624 3,980 79,799
16,941 339,667 18,760 376,138
22 100,000 2,005,000
20 12,905 258,745 17,808 357,050
615,894 12,348,675 314,977 6,315,289
(491,169) (9,847,938) 47,779 957,969

43 2024 26

10 43
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43

10

43

2023 12 31
2023 2022

1,986 39,819 32,278 647,174

20 30,698 615,495 7,103 142,415
32,684 655,314 39,381 789,589

929,837 18,643,232 936,663 18,780,093

16 53,768 1,078,048 53,768 1,078,048
876,069 17,565,183 882,895 17,702,045

929,837 18,643,232 936,663 18,780,093

2024 26

144/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 12 31
2023 2022

5 44,726 896,756 54,747 1,097,677
(15,700) (314,785) (19,923) (399, 456)
29,026 581,971 34,824 698,221
6 240,433 4,820,682 310,067 6,216,843
______ 269,459 __5.A02,858 3. 6,915,065
7 (187,031) (3,749,972) (260,472) (5,222,464)
19 (17,384) (348,549) (18,752) (375,978)
8 (81,915) (1,642,396) (87,126) (1,746,876)
_____ (286.330) __ G401y | _(366.350)  (7.345.318)
12,248 245,572 (203,975) (4,089,699)
(1,125) (22,556) 10,417 208,861
> ... ws 223,016 _ ____ (198.5%8) ___ (3.880.838)
(5.,748) (115,247) (215,017) (4,311,091)
20 (1,626) (32,601) (1,616) (32,401)
(7.374) (147,849) (216,633) (4,343,492)
10 548 10,987 54 1,083
(6,826) (136,861) (216,579) (4,342,409)
(6,826) (136,861) (216,579) (4,342,409)
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2023 12 31
2022
..>23,768 1,018,048 _ _ _ ____ ____.._._1 1,199,474 24,049,454 _ 1,253,242 _ 25,127,502
(216,579)  (4,342,409)  (216,579) (4,342,409)
7.1 20,670 414,434 20,670 414,434
7.1 (20,670)  (414,434) (20,670)  (414,434)
22 (100,000)  (2,005,000)  (100,000) (2,005,000)
e et e eeo— o - .(100.000) _ (2,005,000) _ _(100,000) _ (2,005,000)
2022 12 31
2023
__53.768 1,078,048 _ _ . oo ._. 882,895 17,702,045 _ _ 936,663 _ 18,780,093
(6,826)  (136,861) (6,826)  (136,861)
7.1 12,018 240,961 12,018 240,961
7.1 (12,018)  (240,961) (12,018)  (240,961)
2023 12 31
53,768 1,078,048 876,060 17,565,183 929,837 18,643,232
10 43
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2023 12 31

2023 2022
23 (@) (290,583) (5,826,189) (10,866) (217,863)
6,767 135,678 2,126 42,626
(283,816) (5.690,511) (8,740) (175,237)
1 12 (694) (13,915) (3,016) (60,471)
(120,957) (2,425,188) (49,730) (997,087)
156,935 3,146,547 232,198 4,655,570
1,570 31,479 1,407 28,210
36,854 738,923 180,859 3,626,223
(18,580) (372,529) (20,112) (403, 246)
(18,580) (372,529) (20,112) (403, 246)
(265,542) (5.,324,117) 152,007 3,047,740
303,777 6,090,729 151,770 3,042,989

4 80

38,239 766,692 303,777 6,090,729

@

2023 12 31
531,313,000
26.7

10 43
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2023 12 31
VG 1110
3140
99 43
2023 30
2023 30
2024
26
2.1
HKICPA
HKFRSs

HKFRSs

2023 12 31 491,000,000
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2023
- HKAS
HKAS 12
HKAS HKFRS
2023
HKAS - HKAS
HKFRS HK IFRIC
2.2
2.3
20 50
HKAS 28

2.4
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10
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2023 12 31 2022 12 31

12 31

2023 2022 2023 2022

/ / / 1,334 /

/ / / 1,486 / 5,89
/ / / 370 / 193
/ / / 226 / 530
/ / / 3,464
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2023 12 31
2022 50
42,000 2022 111,000
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
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2022 2023 2022
/ 30 / 79,241 / 84,808
2023 2022
791 199,570
16,616 26,119
5 1
20,853 78,767
8 26
38,273 304,483
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HKFRS
HKFRS
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
14
2023 12 31
38,239,000 2022 303,777,000
2023 2022
21,502 35,205
1,391,593 884,009
3,816 4,300
42,953
2,037 4,693 546 6,578
17,420 20,819 26,535 277,242
_____ 1,430,805 ____ 8.8 __ A8 __Sea9 ___moer 8518
(579,504) (165,452)
(3,273) (3,980)
(461) (556)
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(15,411) (33,273) (18,581) (7,214)
(579,504) (19,145) (33,273) (165,452) (23,117) (7,214)
851,011 50,480 (28,580) 780,297 258,970 (636)
4.2
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 SFO
2023 12 31 2022 12 31 SFO
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2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( )
13
555,949 39,599 1,046 4,668 556,995 44,267
1,034 1,034
834,598 838,708 834,598 838,708
555,949 39,599 835,644 838,708 5,702 1,391,593 884,009
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
4,668 1,034 5,702 7,780 7,780
(4,668) (4,668) 1,685 1,685
(965) (965)

(69) (69) (3,112) (651) (3,763)

4,668 1,034 5,702
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(3,112) (651) (3,763)
4,668,000
40
2023 12 31
4,668,000
965,000
2023 2022
44,438 54,095
288 652
44,726 54,747
2023 2022
6,095 2,833
1,575 1,423
26.4 232,451 301,187
312 4,624
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7.1

240,433 310,067
2023 2022
162,299 192,440
10,298 44,423
7.1 12,018 20,670
2,416 2,939
187,031 260,472
2023 2022
2022
11
3.26
3.47
7.0
41.0
1.4
3.6
2022 4.65 92,309
3.94 (500)

4.14 (3,100)
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2023
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89,334,000 2022

2025 14
2026 22
2026 12 11
2027 10

2023 12 31

2023 2022

2024 2026
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3.47 9,250
4.55 97,959
97,959,000 2022 97,959,000
54,605,000 4.57 2022 4.89
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
2023 2022
5.87 20,500 20,500
4.14 60,209 60,209
5.55 8,000 8,000
3.47 9,250 9,250
2022 12 31
12 36
2022 2023 2025
2023 2022
1,213
2023 2022
1,709 2,057
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11 12 4,714 4,794
1,078 737
4,374 4,446

19,072 16,995
4,544 5,034
789 1,243
2,252 3,872
2,639 2,612
1,188 7,229
168 156
18,013 16,063
19,254 19,607
1,919 464
202 1,817
81,915 87,126
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2023 2022
(42,235) 11,753
54,483 (215,728)
(1,125) 10,417
11,123 (193,558)
10
2023 12 31 16.5 2022
16.5
2023 2022
17 (548) (54)
(548) (54)
2023 2022
(7,374) (216,633)
16.5 2022  16.5 (1,217) (35,745)
(15,102) (6,527)
10,786 39,262
(2,691)
7,676 2,956
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(548) (54)
2023 12 31
71,981,395 2022 25,461,000
11,876,930 2022 4,201,000
11
2022
17,356 1,544 17,047 1,638 37,585
(14,354) (1,266) (14,980) (1,456) (32,056)
3,002 278 2,067 182 5,529
2022 12 31
3,002 278 2,067 182 5,529
1,225 1,225
(1,382) (92) (1,008) (182) (2,664)
1,620 186 2,284 4,090
2022 12 31
17,356 1,544 18,272 1,638 38,810
(15,736) (1,358) (15,988) (1,638) (34,720)
1,620 186 2,284 4,090
2023 12 31
1,620 186 2,284 4,090
397 97 173 667
(1,393) (73) (1,232) (2,698)
624 210 1,225 2,059

2023 12 31
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2022 12 31

2023 12 31
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17,753 1,641 18,445 1,638 39,477
(17,129) (1,431) (17,220) (1,638) (37,418)
624 210 1,225 2,059
31,199 7,500 38,699

(25,891) (25,891)

5,308 7,500 12,808

5,308 7,500 12,808

1,791 1,791

(2,130) (2,130)

4,969 7,500 12,469

32,990 7,500 40,490

(28,021) (28,021)

4,969 7,500 12,469

4,969 7,500 12,469

27 27

(2,016) (2,016)

2,980 7,500 10,480

33,017 7,500 40,517

(30,037) (30,037)

2,980 7,500 10,480
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2023 2022
1,046 4,668
555,949 39,599
556,995 44,267
1,034
2,191 2,738
180,365 129,690
13.1 652,042 670,737
35,543
834,598 839,742
1,391,593 884,009
1,388,300 875,780
3,293 8,229
1,391,593 884,009
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
26.2
26.2
46,000 8,100 2022 67,000
4,000 400 14
3,600 2022 400 14 1,200 2023 12 31

2022 12 31
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2023 12 31 420,201,600
71,950,000 39,162,000
26.7
2023 2022
564,511 45,073
20,293 455
7,044 783
20,485 14,291
35,543
751,902 786,829
27,358 1,035

1,391,593 884,009
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2023 2022
41 30
2023 2022
1,575,751 2,202,297
(88,421) (1,308,023)
26.2
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30

2023 12 31

31

2022 12 31

90
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2023 2022
46 210
3,770 4,090
3,816 4,300

2023 2022
1,224 1,564
2,592 2,736
3,816 4,300

2023 2022
17,176 23,504
20,819 277,242
244 3,031
38,239 303,777

2023 2022
387 1
9,372 4,152
1 1
10 64,605
4 1,042
20,860 36,820
7,605 197,156
38,239 303,777
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16
2022
2022 12 31
2023
2023 12 31 11,409,459 3,893,318 11,855 41,913 53,768
2023 12 31 15,000,000
2022 15,000,000 3,893,318 2022 3,893,318 0.1
2022 0.1
17
2022 1,549
10 54
2022 12 31 2023 1,603
10 548
2023 12 31 2,151
2023 2022
12 2,151 1,603

18
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2023 2022
30 3,231 3,775
31 60 162
60 42 43
3,273 3,980
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
19
2023 2022
58,153 58,153
35,646
12 31 93,799 58,153
(32,668) (13,916)
(17,384) (18,752)
12 31 (50,052) (32,668)
12 31 43,747 25,485
HKFRS 16
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
20
2023 2022
24,911 43,407
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35,646

(18,580) (20,112)

1,626 1,616

12 31 43,603 24,911

2023 2022

; 12,905 17,808

- 12,139 7,103
) 18,559

30,698 7,103

43,603 24,911
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21
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
22
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
23
2023 2022
(7.374) (216,633)
(6,095) (2,833)
(1,575) (1,423)
4,714 4,79
17,384 18,752
1,626 1,616
(12,248) 203,975
1,885
13,703 (2,192)
484 2,302
(47,302) 2,210
(117,261) 73,067
(35,998) (75,047)
(707) (3,248)
(1,819) (1,411)
(100,000)
(14,795)
(290,583) (10, 866)
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24
24.1
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
24.2
2023 12 31 2022 12 31
25
2023 12 31 IT
7,920,000 2022 10,304,000
2023 2022
1,980 2,384
1,980 1,980
1,980 1,980
1,980 3,960

7,920 10,304
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26
26.1
2023 2022
17,729 30,293
6,713 12,353
54 54
24,496 42,700
26.2
2023 2022
481,453 39,603
471 629
94,048 77,139
1,126 3,465
12,832 12,977
379 548
40,078 183

181/280



13.1
13.1
13.1
13.1
13.1
13.1
13.1
13.1
13.1

ICAV
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963

31,223

33,150

66

75,095

39,856

47,952

319,014

2

2,064

29,364

1,227

105,684
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1,733

30,411

32,952

67

70

103,380

51,590

50,108

45,036

357,123

2

2,092

32,652

35,543

1,004
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74,500
1,390,547 878,307
26.3
26.4
2022 12 31
34,570,000
2023 12 31 2023 12 31
232,451,000 2022 301,187,000
26.5
2023 12 31
3,600,000 2022 3,600,000

15,654,000 2022 16,007,000
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26.6

26.7

2023 12 31
412,201,000
71,950,000
39,162,000
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31t DECEMBER 2023
Mote 2023 pile bt
HK8ooo HKg'000
Non-currenl assets
Property, plant and equipment 1 2,059 4,090
Right-of-use assets — properties 19 43,747 25,485
Intangiblc assets 12 10,480 12,460
Investments 13 1.588.500 875,780
Other assets 6,955 8,838
Deferred tax assets 17 2,151 1,607
1,453,000 928205
Current assets
Amounts due from related companies 26.3 21,502 35,205
Investments 15 3,203 8,209
Fees receiveble 14 3,816 4,300
Prepayments and other receivables 14,022 11,245
Amounts receivable on sales of investments 42,053 -
Cash and cazh equivalents 15 38,239 403,777
124,725 362,756
Current Habilities
Amounts due to related sompanies 26.5 579,504 185,452
Accrued bonus 2,271 8,077
Distribution fee expenses paveble 18 3,273 3,980
Other pavables and accrued expenses 16,941 18,760
Dividend payable a2 - 100,000
Lease liabilities 20 12,505 17,808
615,804 314,977
Net earrent (liabilitics)/assets {401,164) 47,779

o il 85 b e e e e e B

The financial statements on pages 5 to 43 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2024 and
were signed on its behalf,

asmsmansnmacsansemsnasdyaFessnnn snnnn
50 Chun Ki Louis
Direetor

The notes on pages 10 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements.
G
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER zo023
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MNote 2023 2p22
HE$'ooo HE=a0n

MNon-current liahilities
Agerued bonus 1,586 n2.978
Lease liabilities 20 30,608 7,103
32,684 39,381
Net assets 920,837 936,663

Equity

Tssued equily 15 53,768 53,768
Retained earnings 876,000 882,895
Total equity 929,837 636,663

The financial statements on pages 5 to 43 were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2024 and

were signed oo its behalf.

S0 Chun Ki Louis
Diraetor

The notes on pages 10 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements.
- ?u
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Income

Fee income

Distribution [ee expenses

Net fee income

Other income

Total net income

Expenses

Compensation and benefit expenses
Depreciation of right-ol-use assets - properties
Other expenses

Total expenscs

Met gains/{losses) on investments
Others

Other gains/(losses) - net

Operating losses (after other gains/losses)
Finanee costs

Loss before tax

Tax credit

Loss for the year

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
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MNole 2023 Z022
HES o000 HEs'oo00

5 44,726 54,747
{15,700} (19,923)

20,026 54.524

& 240,433 310,067
260,450 344,801
7 {187,041) {260,472)
19 (17,584) (18,752)
8 (81,915) (87,126)
(286,330) (266,350)
12,248 (203,075)

(1,125) 10,417
g 11,123 (193,558)
(5,748) (215,017)
20 {1,626) (1.0616)
(7.a74) (216,633)

10 548 54
{6,826) (216,579)
(6,826) (216,579)

The notes on pages 10 to 43 are an integral part of these financial statements,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2023

As at 1 Januvary zoz2

Loss for the year

Transactions with ovwners
in their capacity as

OWTLEDS

Capital contribution - share-
bazed compensation

Capital contribution -
repurchase of equity

instrument

Dividends to owners of the

Company

Total transactions with
owners in their eapacity

A4S DWNETrS

As at 31 December 2022
and 1 January 2023

Loss for the vear

Transactions with owners
in their capacity as

owWners

Capital contribution - share-
based compensation

Capital contribution -
repurchase of equity

instrument

Total transactions with
owners in their capacity

A5 DWNETS

As at 31 December 2o23

EDINETOOOO

OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
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Issued Revaloation Retained

Note equity IESCTVE carnings Total

HEKg8'000 HEg 000 HK&oo0 HK$'000

53,768 - 1,199,474 1,253,242
- - (216,579) (216,579)

7.1 - 20,670 - 20,670
7.1 - (20,670) " {z0,670)
2o - - {100,000) {100,000)
- - {100,000] (100,000}

53,768 A82 805 936,663
- - (6826 (6,826)

7.1 - 12,018 - 12,018
7.1 (12,018) - (12,018)
53,768 - 876,060 920,837

‘The notes on pages 10 to 43 are an integral part of these financizl statements.

~B-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo23

Note 2023 2020
HEKs'o00 HKS'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operations aq, (1) (2g90.583) (10,866)
Interest received 6,707 2,126
Net eash used in operating aclivities {283,816) (8.740)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets 11,12 (694) (3,016)
Purchase of investments {120,957} {49,730)
Disposal of investments 156,635 232,108
Dividends received from investments 1,570 1407
Net cash generaled from investing aclivities 36,854 180,850
Cash fMows from financing activities
Principal and interest elements of lease payments {18,580) (20,112)
Wel cash used in financing activities (18,580) (20,112)
Nel (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents (265,542) 152,007
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 308,777 151,770
Exchange difference 4 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 38,230 303,777

Note {a):
Significant non-cash transactions:
Thring the year ended 31 December 2025, there were purchases of investments of total HES531,313,000

from the related company, Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, settling through the amount due to a velated
company. For details please refor to note 26.7.

The notes on pages 10 1o 44 are an integeal part of these financial stalements.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMREER 2023

General information

Value Partners Limited (the “Company™) is a limited Hability company incorperated in the British
Virgin Islands. The address of its registered office and its principal place of business are Comimerce
Homse, Wickhams Cay 1, P.0O. Box 3140, Road Town, Tortola, VG110, British Virgin Tslands and
4ard Floor, The Center, g9 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The Company is licensed Lo carry out aclivities of dealing in securities, dealing in futures contracts,
advising on securities, advising on fotures contracts and asset management under the Hong Kong
Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Company principally provides investment manggement
services to investment funds and managed accounts,

Prior to 30 March 2023, the Company was wholly owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limiled,
the then immediale holding company, while Value Partners Group Limited was the ultimate holding
company. Value Partners Group Limited is listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Eong Limited. Effective from 30 March 2023, Value Partners Hong Kong Limited transferred 100%
equity interest of the Company to Value Partners Group Limited and therefore, Value Partners
Group Limited becomes the immediate and ultimate holding company of the Company sinee then.

These financial statcments are presented in Hong Kong doltars (*HES'0007), unless otherwise
stated, These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directers on 26
April 2024,

Summary of material accounting policies

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless atherwise
stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HEFR3s™) issued by the Hong Xomg Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HEICPA™). The financial statements have been prepered under
the historieal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investments,

The preparation of finaneial statements in conformity with HKFRSEs requires the use of sccounting
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise Lheir judgernent in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 3 below.

At 31 December 2023, the Company’s corrent liabilities exceeded its current assets by HE$401

million. Value Partmers Group Limdled, the immediate amd uoltimate holding company, has

confinmed its intention to provide sufficient financial support to the Company so as to enable the

Company to mect its liabilities as and when they fall due and to enable the Company to continue its

operation for the foresseable futurs. "lhe Directors beliove the Company will continue a3 a going

ggn_cem. Consequently, the Directors have prepared the finaneial statements on a going concern
sis.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Company

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for
their annual reporting period eommencing 1.Jannary 2023

_II:"
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of preparation (Continned)
(a) Newand amended standards adopted by the Company (Continued)
+  Definition of Accounting Estimates — amendments to HEAS B

»  Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction —
amendments to HKAS 12

+  Disclosure of Accounting Policies = Amendments to HEAS 1 and HETRS Practice
Statement 2

(b) New standards issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2023 and have nol been early adopted

«  Amendments to HEAS 1 — Classificalion of Tiabilities as Current or Non-current and
Amendments to HEAS 1 - Non-eurvent Lizbilities with Covenants.

There are no HEKFRS or HE(IFRIC) Interpretations thal are nol vel effective that would be
expected to have a material impact on the Company.

Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to
administralive tasks only, and the relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangemenis, 4 slructured entity often has restricted activities and a narrow and well defined
objcetive, such as to provide investment opportunities for investors by passingon risks and rewards
associated with the assets of the structured entity. Consequently, investment funds are considered
a5 “structured entities”.

Associales

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not contrel or joint
cantrel, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The Company has invested in certain investinent funds that it manages. As an investment manager,
the Company may put sced capital in investment funds that it manages in order to facilitate the
fund launech. The purpese of sced capital s to enswve that the investmenl funds can have a
reasonable starting fund size to operate and to build track record. The Company may subzequently
vary the holding of these seed capital investments depending on the market conditions and various
factors. The Company has applied the measurement exemption within HKAS 28 “Investments in
associates and joint ventures” for muotual funds, unit trusts and similar entities and soch
investments are classified as {inancial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
ltemns included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™). The

financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
funectional and presentation currency.

-11-
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NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(h) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Forcign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at vear-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities dencminated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Property, plant and egquipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising leasehold improvements, forniture and fixtures, office
equipment and vehieles, arc stated at historical cost less acemmulated depreciation, Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrving mmount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the itern will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrving amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during
the period in which they ave incurced.

Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost over their estimated useful lives, or in the case of leasehold improvements, the shorter
lease terms as follows:

Leasehold improvements The shorter of three vears or lease torms
Furniture and fixures Five vears

Office equipment Three years

Vehicles Three years

The assets’ useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An assel’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals arc detcrmined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts and
are recognised in profit or bass,

Intangible assets
{a} Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs ineurred to
zequire and bring to use the speeific software, These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (five years),

Costs associated with maintzining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Costs thal are directly associated with the development of identifiable
and unigue software products controlled by the Company, and that will probably generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognised as intangible assets,
Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their
estimated nseful lives (not exceeding five vears).
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WNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TILE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2 Summary of material accounting pulicies (Continued)

2.6  Intangible assets {(Continued)

(b)

Others

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, The useful
lives of intangible assets ars assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the usefn] economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial vear end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impainment annually cither
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortized.
The useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in the
useful life assessiment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis,

2.7  Impuirment

(a)

(b)

Impairment of intangible assets and other non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annmally for impainnent. Assels that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving
amounts may not be recoverable. An impaimment loss is recognised for the amount by which
an asset's carrying amounl exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of dispesal and value in use. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest lovels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-linancial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises 2 loss allowance for expected evedit losses (*ECL") for the finanedal
assels measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalents and fees
receivable),

For fees receivable, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by HEFRS g,

which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised [rom initial recognition of the
reecivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") are net subject o
ECL assessment,

-]3-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: thoss to he
measired subsequently at FVPL, at fair value through other comprehensive income (“TFVOCI™) and
al amortised cost. The classification depends on the Company's business model for managing the
financiz! assets and the conlractual lerms of the cash Mows,

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profil or loss or clher
comprehensive income (“OCL"). For investments in cquity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at FVOCL 'The Company reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its buziness mode! for managing those assets changes,

Recognition amd derecogrition

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are revognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Company commits to purchase or sell the financial assets. They are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all finaneial assets not carried at fair value through prodit or loss.
Finaneial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in prefit or loss, Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash fows from the financisl asseis have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewands of ownership,

Measurement

At initial recogrition, the Company measures a finaneial assct at its fair valuc, Transaction costs of
financial azsets carried at FVYPL are expensed in profit or loss.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as listed equity securities and
listed investment funds) are based on last traded prices at the close of trading on the reporting date.
An active market is a4 market in which tranzactions for the ingtruments take place with sufficient
frequency and valume (o provide pricing information on an ongoeing basis, When tradingof an listed
security is suspetided, the vestment is valued at the Company's estimate of its fair value,

Euity i s aidi : funds

Unlisted investment funds are stated at fair value based on the net asset values of the respestive
funds cbtained from the relevant fund administrators. When the net asset valoes of an investment
fund is not executable, the Company reviews the valuations of the underlving investments to
assess the appropriateness of the net asset valoe as provided by the relevant fund administrator.

« The Company subsequenthy measures all equity investments at FVPL.

#  Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL are recognised in net gains/(losses) in
the statement of comprelensive income.

e Dividends from such investments continue {o be recognised in profit or loss as cther income
when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.

Transfers between levels of the fair value measurement hierarchy are recognised as of the date of
the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

_14_
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2 Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
2.9 Fees receivable

Fees receivable are initially recognised at the amount of consideration that is uneonditional unless
they eontain sipnificant financial components, when they are recognised at fair value, and
subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any provision for
impairment,

210 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, time deposits and demand deposits, Cash equivalent are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2,11 Share capital
Ordinary shares are elassified as equity.
212 Current and deferred tax

The current tax charge is caloulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted by
the reporting date in the jurisdictions swhere the Company operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns wilh respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate,
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authotities.

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their careying amounts in the financial statements. However,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recomition of an asset or a liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the tme of the transaction affects neither
aceounting nortaxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined nsing tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax assct is realised or the deferred tax Hability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differenees can be utilised.

Dieferred tax assets and labillities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax asschs against current tax linbilitics and when the deferred tax asselz and liabililies relate to

taxes levied by the same tax authority.
Deferred tax lizbilities are provided on temporary differences arizsing on invesiments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences is controiled by

the Company and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the forcsceable
future,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ;1 DECEMBER 2023

2 Summary of material accounting policies {Continued)
2.13 Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Company as revenue when it arises from the provision of services in the
ordinary course of the Company’s activities.

The Company recognises revenue when or as it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
promised services (assets) to the customers in an amount to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those services. Assets are transferred when or as the customer obtains
control of those assets. The Company includes variable consideration in revenue when itis no longer
highly probeble of significant reversal — when the associated uncertainty is resolved. For some
enntraets with customers, the Company has diseretion to involve a third party in providing services
to the customer, Generally, the Company is deemed to be the principal in these arrangements
beeause the Company controls the promised serviees before they are transferred to customers, and
accordingly presents the revenoe gross of related costs,

{a) Fee income from investment management activities

Management fees are recognised as the services are performed over time and are primarily
based on agresd upon percentage of the net asset values of the investment funds and
managed accounts.

(b} Fee income from fund distribution activities

Front-end fees relating to the distribution services are recognised when the services are
performed.

(c) Service fees income

Service fees are recognised when seivices arve rendered in accordance with the underlving
agreements. The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered.

2.14 Interest and dividend income
[uterest income from financial assets measuring at amortised cost is related to interest ineome fram
time deposits and bank deposits. It is recognised on a lime-proportion basis using the effective
interest method. Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
z2.15 Distribution fee cxpenses
Distribution fee expenses represent rebates of manngement fee and front-end fee income by the
Company to the distributors for selling its products. Distribution fee expenses are recognised or as
the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised services (assets) to the

eustomers in an amount of corresponding management fees and front-cnd fees the Company
expected to be entitled in exchange for those serviees,

_lﬁ_
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[ -]

Summary of material accounting policies (Continzed)
216 Compensation and benefits
{a) Bonus

The Company recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit attributable to owners of the Company after certain adjustments.
The Company has & deferred bonus plan for certain eligible employees that allows such
emplovess to receive bonus amounts in cash or in shares of nominated company funds
managed by the Company with the fluclvations in share value earned borne by the relevant
employees. Amounts to be distributed under the bonus plans are expensed over the vesting
period based on the estimated payout amcunt. The Company recognises a liability where
contractually obliged or where there is 2 past practice that has ereated a constructive
cbligation.

(h) Share-based compensation

Certain directors and employees have been granted opticns over ordinary shares of the
ultimate holding company under a share option scheme. The fair value of the employee
serviees reecived by the Company in exchange for the grant of share options is reeognised
&5 an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value

of the share options granted:

- including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-matrket performanee vesting
conditions; and

- including the impect of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of share
options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting peried,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At
the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of share
options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, il any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equily.

In the seme financial period, the ultimate heolding company makes a recharge to the
Company in respect of the options granted to the Company’s emplovees.

{c} Pension obligations

The Company participates in a mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong which is a
defined contribution plan generally funded through payments to trustee-administered
funds. The Company pays contributions to the mandatory provident fund scheme on a
mandatory basis. The Company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the mandatory provident fund scheme does net hold sufficient assets to pay
all emplovees the benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods,
The contributions are recognised as compensation and benefit expenses when they are due.

(d)  Other employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit costs are charped in the period to which the emploves services
relate. Employee entitlements to annuzl leave and long-gservice leave are recognized when

they accrue to emplovees. An accrnal is made for the estimated linbility for annual leave
and long-service leave as a resull of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

- 1?-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Summary of material accounting policies (Continued)
Leases

The Company leases various offices. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed period of three
yvears, Lease lerms are negotiated on an individual bagis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The lease apreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be
used as security for bortowing purposcs.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asget and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company. Each lease pavment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so0 as to
produce a constant periedic rate of interest on the remaining balanece of the linbility for each peried.
The right-of-use assct is deprociated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease terin on
a straight-line basis.

Assets and Habilitics arlsing from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis, Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable; and
. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate,

The leaze payments are discounted vsing the interest rate implicit in the laase, If that rate cannot
be determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the lessee would
have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value in a similar economic
envirgnment with similar terms and conditipns,

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurcnent of lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

. provision of restoration costs.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of
12 months or less, Low-vailue assets comprise small items of office equipment.
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] Summary of material accounting policics (Continued)
2,18 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises {from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the sccurrence or non-oecurrence of one or more uneertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events thal is nol recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic reseurces will be
required or the amount of obligation cannat be measured reliably. A contingent liability is not
recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the finaneial statements. When a change in the probability
of an oulflow occurs so that the cutllow j= probable, it will then be recognised as a provizion,

A contingent asset is a possible assct that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the cecurrence or non-oecurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company. A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes
to the finaneial statements, where necessary, when an inflew of economic benefits is proballe,
When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised,

2.19 Comparable figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with the current vear's presentation.

3 Critical aceounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that arve believed to be reasonable under the
circumnstances, The resulting accounting estimates may not equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a risk of causing a material adjustmaent to the carryving
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next finaneial vear arve addressed below.,

31  Investment funds managed by the Company

The Company acts as an investment manager to a number of investment funds and has provided
seed capital for the set up of these funds. When determining whether the Company contrels these
funds, usually the level of aggregate economic interests of the Company in these funds and the level
of investors' rights to remove the investment manager are considered.

The Company determines that it has no control over some investment funds since the level of
agrregate econgmic interests of the Company in those funds is not so significant that it gives the
Company contro] over the funds together with the level of investors' rights to remove the investment
manager.

3.2 Income taxes and deferred tax assets

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for income lax. There are
transactions and caleulations for which the ultimate tax detcrmination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issucs
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outeome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impaet the
ingome tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the determination is made.

The directors have assessed thal il is nol yet probable that taxable profits will be available in the
foreseeable future, and therefore the Company has nwot recognised any deferved tax asset in respect
of the unutilised tax losses as at 31 December 2023 and 2022, Refer lo note 10,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2023

Financial risk maoagement
Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities in relation to finaneial instruments expose it to & variety of financial rigks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and
Liguidity risk. The Company's cverail financial risk managerment programme focuses on the analysis,
evaluztion and management of finaneial risks and sceks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Company’s financial performance,

(a)  Foreign exchange risk

The Company has transactions with eounterparties in different locations and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures. Foreipn exchanpge risk arises
when future commereial transactions and recognised asscts and labilities which arc
denominated in a currency that is not the entily's functicnal currency,

As at 21 December 2023 and 2022, the majority of the assets and liabilitics are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar {the Company’s functional and presentation currency), United States
dollar, Renminbi, Pound sterling and Singapore dollar, United States dollar is currently
linked to Hong Kong dollar within a narrow range. The directors therefore consider that
there is no significant foreign exchange risk with reapeet to the United States dollar.

The following table shows the approximate changes in the Company's post-tax profit for
the year in response to reasonable possible change in the foreign exchange rates to which
the Company has signilicant exposure as at 31 December, with all other variables held

constant.
Impact on post-tax
Change profit
202y 20z 2023 zozz2
HE&000 HEK&aoo
Australian dellar +{-5% +/-6% +1-1,334 +/-2
Pound sterling +f-5% +-g8, +/-1,486 +/-5.804
Renminbi + /5% +/-9% +/-370 +/-193
Singapore dollar +1=1% +/-1% 1 f-006R +/-550
South Korean won +/-6% +/-9% - +/-3,464

.20.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Finanecial risk management
Financial risk factors
(b)  Interest rate risk

The Company’s cash flow interest vate risk arises primarily from eash and cash equivalents,
which are interest-bearing at variable rates. The management monitors the interest rate
exposure on a continucus basis and adjust the portfolio of bank saving balances and bank
deposits when necessary. As at 31 December 2023, if interest rates had heen 50 basis points
(2o22: 50 basis points) (these represent a reasonable possible shift in the interest rates,
having regard to the historieal volatility of the interest rates) higher or lower with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit and equity would have been approximately
HE$42,000 higher or lower (2022; HK$111,000 hizher or lower) respectively, The
sensitivity analysis for the years ended 31 December 2025 and 2022 was primarily arising
[rom the increase or decreass in interest income oo cash and cash equivalents,

Fair valus int is

The Company considered that the fair value interest rate risk iz insigrificant as at 32
December 2023 and 2022, Therefore, ne sensitivity analvsis has been performed.

(e) Price risk

The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk in respect of investments held by tha
Company, which comprises investments in cortain investment funds that it manages as
seed capital and other Investments in lsted and unlisted equity securities and investment
funds.

The table below summarises the approximate impact of inercases or deereases in the
markets in which the Company’s investments operate. For the purpose of measuring
sensitivity of the Company's investments against markets, the Company uses the
corrclation between the price movements of the MSCI China Index and the Company's
investments Decanze the Company's investments mainly focus on the Greater China
equities market and the directors consider that the MSCI China Index is & well-known index
representing the universe of opportundtics for investments In the Greater China equities
market availalile to non-domestic investors.

The analysis is based on the asswmnplion that the index had increased or decreased by the
stated percentages (these represent a reasonable possible shift in the index, having regard
to the historical volatility of the index) with all other variables held constant and the
investments moved sccording to the historical sorrelation with the index,

Change Post-tax profit
2023 2022 2023 zo22
HE$ ooo HE$'ooo
MSCI China Index +f-z0% +/-30% +/-75,241 +/-84,808

Post-tax profit for the year would inercase or decrease as a result of gains or losses on
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Refer to note
13 for additional disclosures on the price risk in relation to investments.

-8 =
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(e)

(d)

Price risk (Continued)

Tn addition to equity securities price risk in respect of investraents held by the Company,
the Company is also exposed to price visk indirectly in respect of management fee which is
determined with reference to the net asset value and performance of the investment funds
and managed aecounts respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalonts, deposits with brokers and related interest
receivable placed with banks and financial institutions. Credit risk also avises from evedil
exposures with respect to the investment funds and managed accounts on the outstanding
fees receivable. The Company carns fees from investment management activitics and fund
distribution activities from the investment funds and managed aceounts,

Credit risk is managed on a group basis and the credit quality of the counterparty is assessed,
taking inte aceount its financial position, past experience and other factors,

Cash

The table below summarises the credit quality {as illustrated by credit rating) of cash and
cash equivalents, deposits with broliers and related interest receivable placed with banks.

2!‘.\23 H-L ]

HK$'oo0 HKs'ooo

A 791 199,570
A 16,616 26,119
BEE+ [ 1
BEB 20,853 78,767
Unrated 8 a6
38,273 204,483

The reference independent credit rating used is Standard & Poor's, Fitch Ratings or
Moody's long-term loeal issuer eredit rating. The directors do not expeet any losses from
non-performance by these counterparties,

Tmpairment of financial assets

Fees receivable, other receivables and amounts due from related companies are subject to
the expected credit loss model. While eash and essh equivalents are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS ¢, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The Company applies the HEFRS ¢ shimplified approach te measure expected eredit logses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all fees receivable.

To measure the expected credit losses, fees receivable have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due, The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of fees receivable and the corresponding historical credit losses, adjusted
to vefleel current and forward-looking informatfon on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to seitle the receivables,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo23

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (Continued)

Based on the Company’s past experience in collecting the outstanding fees receivable, the
chance of unsuccessful collection of fees receivable and other receivables were minimal.
The Company considered that the expected loss rates for fees recelvable are minimal, and
no loss allowanee is recognised.

Impairment losses on fees receivable, other receivables and amounts due from related
companies are presented as net impairment losses within profit or loss, Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item. No
impairment losses on fees receivable and other receivables are recopnised as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 respectively,

Befer to note 14 for additional disclosures on the eredit risk in relation to fees receivable.
Ligmidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining a sufficient amount of liquid asseis to
ensure daily operational requirements are fulfilled. As at 31 December 2023, the Company
held liguid assets of HKS38,230,000 (2022: HRS303,777.000), being cash and cash
equivalents, that are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk,
The table below analyses the Company's financial assets and liabilities by remaining

contractual maturities at the balance sheet date. The amcunts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cashflow,
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Financial risk management
Finaneial risk factors

{¢)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

apay * 2093

Mostared  Lesstham  Betweent  Nostated  Tessthon  Retwoend
matrity 1year and § years maturity 1year  and 3 vears
IESano HES' oo MK8ano HK$ o0 HES non HES'9nn

Asgels
Armgmis doe from
related companies S50 - . 35205
Invertmenis
Won-darivative
finareial
instriELents 1,591,555 - - Afq,000 - -
Fees recehable - 5816 - - 30 -
Avmuds reocivlde
uli.-u]v_'. ol
investmenis - 42053 - Z - =
Other recaivablos - 2007 a.603 = 540 b578
Cash apd cash
eprhmlert s 17,450 20,815 - 26,535 77,242 .
LAZO51 g s 4,503 945,740 232087 b5 TE
Linhililies
Amounts due 1o
relatid companies (57,504 ) - (165.452) = =
LDizsd pillmetibon fee
exproscs payulle - LR - - (z0d0] -
CHher payables #1:1H) - - {556] £
T finhitities . (15401} {(33.273) # {18 581) (rziq}
(550,304 [EERELY (33272} (t65.952) {2,017 Fa)
Cumulative gup Bsy0n o480 (4B 580) TEOu07 258,970 (3
- 24 -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zoz3

Financial risk management (Continued)
Capital risk management

The Company's objectives in managing capital are to safeguard ils ability to continue s a going
concern in arder lo provide returns for shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholder, return capital to sharchalder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce liabilities, The
Company monilors capital on the basis of the total equity as shown in the statement of finaneial
positicn, The Company's strateqy is to maintain 2 solid capital base to support the operations and
development of its business in the long term.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2092, the Company is licensed to carry out the following repulated
activities under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFQ7).

Type 1 Dealing in securities

Type 2 Dealing in futures contracts
Type 4 Advizing on securities

Type 5 Advizing on futures contracts
Type g Asset management

The Company is subjeet to and complied with capital vequirements on the paid-up capital and liquid
capital requiremnents under the SFO for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,

Fair value estimation

The following table presents the Company’s financial instruments that are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period by level of the fair value measurement hierarchy.

Loved 1 Level 2 Lavel g Totnl
2033 anag T 2023 Eozz 2025 oz

203
HE$'o00 HK3'ooo HEswoo HES'osoe HES'ooo HEEooso HESoso HESooo

Iirestments (Kote 13)

Listed secaritios 555048 35,590 1t - J 4,058 550,995 a2
Unkisted securitics
Equtty securities - - - & - L03g - 105
Ivestment funds - - Bad, 508 Rl = - B34.508 B3R 70B
Sub-total E8SAHG M550 a8 644 338.708 = 571 035,53 A84,000

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markels is based on quoted market prices
foridentical instruments at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for the financlal assets
held by the Company is tha current last traded price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The lzir value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuaticn techniques which maximise the use of observable market date and rely as little as possible
on entibv-specific estimates. If all significant inpuls vequired to fair value an instrument are
ahservable, the instrument is included in level 2,

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instruments are
included in level 3. :

_25.
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 51 DECEMEER zo0z3

4 Financial risk management {Continued)
4.2  Fairvalue estimation (Continued)

Spaurﬂc valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
Quoted bid prices (or net asset values) provided by fund administrators for unlisted
investment [unds. These investment funds invest substantially in private debt instroments
and private equities.

. Other technigues, such as recent arm's lenpth transactions, discount cash flow analysis or
veference to other instroments that are substantially the same, for the remaining financial
instruments,

The following table presents the movement of level 3 instruments.

Yeur ended 51 December 2023 Year ended 31 December zozz
Unlisted Tnlisted
Sccouritics Scouritics
Listed - egquily Listed - cguity
secoritics sceurities ‘Tokal securities seciirities Tatal
Listed securitics HES'000 HE#ono HES oo HES'noo HEKSono HES000
As at 1 January 4,568 1,034 5702 7780 - 7780
Transfer (4.068) - (4, 668) - 1,685 1,683
Dispaeal - (g6i5) {963} - . -
Losses recagnised in
profit or bass and
inchndad in fiet Insess on
investments = 11)] (5% (202) (B&1) (3,768)
As at 31 December . = = 4,668 1,004 5,702
Chazsge i unrealisad
lozses for level 3
instruments held ot year
end and included in
profit or lozs and net
losses on investments . - - [3:012) (B51) {3,763)

As at 31 December 2022, the Company holds a s.uspeuded listed security with fair value of
HK24,608,000. As at 31 December 2023, the suspended listed security was valued using market
approach with reference to its last transaction price subject to a 40% discount based on the market
movement of comparable companies as the unub.ﬁtn'ab{e Such investment was elassified es level 3
as at 31 December 2022, During the yvear ended 31 December 2023, there was a transfer from level
g to level 2 of this suspended listed sezurily of HK$4,668 000 in the fair value measurement
hicrarehy due to resumption of listing of that suspended listed sceurity during the vear ended 31
December 2021,

During the vear ended 31 December 2022, there was a transier from level 2 to level 3 of an unlisted
exquity security in the fair value measurement hierarchy. The Dnmpmg, uses its judgement to selact
appropriate methods and make assumptions based on market conditions existing at the end of

reporting period.

Ag at 51 December 2o22, the nvestment funds were stated with reference to the net asset values
provided by the relevant administrators of the investment funds.

During the vear ended 31 December 2023, the disposal of HKS965,000 represents the disposal of

an exizting unlisted equity security.
= 25 -
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3 Fee income
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Revenue consists of fees from investment management activities and fund distribution activities.

Management fees
Front-end fees

Total fee ingome

G Other income

Interest income on cash and cash equivalents

Dividend income on finaneial assets at fair value through
profit or Inss

Service fees from immediate and ultimate holding
companies and related companies (Note 26.4)

Others

Total other income

ri Compensation and benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Management bonus

Share-based compensalion (Note 7.3)
Pension costs - mandatory provident fund scheme

Total compensation and benefit expenses

.27_

207/280

2023 2022
HES"oo0 HE$000
44,438 54,005
=88 652
44,726 54.747
2023 2022
HE$ooo HE& 000
6,005 2,833
1,575 1423
242,451 301,187
312 4,624
240,435 310,067
z2023 2022
HEK#'000 HEK5'000
162,264 192,440
10,208 44,423
12,018 20,5670
2,410 2,939
187,091 260,472
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER =023

Compensation and benefit expenses (Continued)
Share-based compensation

Value Partners Group Limited, the immediate and ultimate holding company, granted share
options to the Company’s directors, employees and others whom the directors consider, in their
sole discretion, have contributed to the Company.

During the year 2023, no options was granted. The weighted average fair value of options granted
during the year 2022 was determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model. The total Fair value
of options granted is smortised over the vesting period. The significant inputs into the model
included share price at the grant date, exercise price, estimated volatility, estimated dividend vield
based on historical dividend per share, expected option life and annual risk-free interest rate. The
volatility was measured based on histeric average share price volatility over a period of similar
maturity to those of the share options. The inputs used in the model are as follows:

zp2z
Grant date 11 Mareh
Share price on grant date (HK$ per share) 9.26
Exercise price (HK$ per share) 3.47
Expected dividend vield (%) 2.0
Expected volatility (%) 41,0
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.4
Remaining time to expected exercise date (vear) 3.6

Movements in the number of share oplions oulstanding and their related exercise prices are as
follows;

Average
exercise Number of
price (HKS options
per share) ("oon)
As at 1 January zozz 4.65 02,304
Expired 394 (500)
Forfeited 4.14 {3,100}
Granted 347 49,250

As at 31 December zozz, 1 January 2o23 and 31

December 2023 4.55 47,959

-of_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Compensation and benefit expenses (Continued)

Share-based compenssation (Continued)

Out of the g7.050,000 (2022: 97,0959,000) outstanding share options, 89,334,000 (2022:
54,603,000) options were exercisable as at 31 December 20273 with weighted average exercise price
of HK$4.57 (2022: HEKS$4.80) per share. No options were exerciced during the vears ended 21
December 2023 and 2o22,

Share options outstanding have the following expiry date and exercise price:

Exercise
price (HKS Number of options ("ooo)
Expiry date per share) 2023 2022
14 April 2025 5.87 20,500 20,500
22 August 2024 4.14 60,200 40,209
11 December 2026 355 8,000 8,000
10 March 2027 3.47 9,250 9,250

The above information on number of shave options relates to Value Partners Group Limited as a
whole and has not been apportioned among the individual group entities due to impracticalily.

Deferred bonus -

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, a portion of the management bonus granted
to the emplovees and direetors of the Company was deferred and payable to the emplovees and
dirgctors if they remain employed with the Company throughout the vesting peried bebween 12 to
36 months, These deferred bonuses are recognised as an expense over the :rjevnnt vesting period.

In 2023 and 2022, the Company offered eligible employees to elect settlement of such deferred
bonus in shares of nominated company funds managed by the Company,

The table below summarises the deferred bonus incurred during the year for years 2024-2026
(2022: years 2023-2025).

2023 2022
HKS"000 HES'oo00
Deferred honus = 1,213
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Other expenses
2023 2022
HES 000 HK&g00
Aunditor's remuneration 1,700 2,087
Depreciation and amortisation (Motes 11 and 12) 4,714 4,794
Entertainment expenses 1,078 737
Government rent, rate and building management fee 4,374 4,446
Information technology expenses 19,072 16,505
Insuranece expenses 4.544 5,034
Legal and professional fees 789 1,243
Marketing expenses 2,850 3,872
Office expenses 2,630 2,612
Eecruitment expenses 1,188 T 220
Registration and licensing fees 168 156
Research expenses 18,013 16,065
Service fees to ultimate holding ecompany and  related
companies [Note 26.5) 15,254 19,607
Travelling expenses 1,010 464
Others 202 1,817
Total other expenses 81,015 87120
Other gaing/(losses) - net
z02g zo22
HE$'oo0 HEKEs'o00
Net gains/(losses) on investments
Net realised (losses)/gaing on finaneial assets at fair
value through profil or loss {q2,235) 11,753
Net unrealised gains/(losses) on financial asscts at
fair value throngh profit or loss 54,483 (215,728)
Net forcign exchange (losses)/gains {1,125) 10,417
Total olther gains/(losses) — net 11,129 (199.558)
- ﬂb -
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Tax credit

Under current tax laws of the British Virgin Islands, there are no income, estate, corporation, capital
gains or other taxes payable by the Company. As a result, ne provision for British Virgin Islands
imncome and capital gains taxes has been made in the finaneial statements.

No Hong Keng profits tax has been provided on the estimated assessable profit/loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023 at the rate of 16.5% (2o022: 16.5%). Tax cutside Hong Kong is caleulated
at the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdictions.

2023 opaz
HK$ 000 HE$'oo0
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (Note 17) {548) (54)
Total tax eredit (548) (54)

The tax on the Company’s loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the tax rate of Hong Kong as follows:

20253 2022
HK#'oo00 HK§'oo0
Lass before Lax (7.474) (216,633)
Tax caleolated at a tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) {1,217) (35,745)
Tex effects of: 5 ;
Non-taxable income and gains on investments (15,102) {B,527)
Non-deductible expenses and losses on investments 10,786 39,262
Adjustment of gver-provision in prior year (2,6g1) =
Tax losses not recognised 7.676 2,956
Tax credit (548) (54)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefit through future taxable its is probeble. As at 91 December 20253, the
Company did net recug{llisede rred tax assets of HK$11,876,030 (2022: HK$4,201,000) in respect
of losses amounting to HK$71,981 395 (2022: HK$25,461,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable profits as the realisation of the related tax benefit may not be probable.

-3'1-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR. ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Property, plant and equipment

Ag atiJanpary anza
Cast
Accumuluted depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 Deceanber
202z

Opening net boak arount

Additions

Depreciation (Note 8)

Closing nct hook amount

As at 31 December 2022
Cost
Accumnulated depreciation

Nt book amount

Year cided 31 December
2023

Opening net hood amount

Additizns

Depreciation (Mote 8)

Closing net book wmgunt
As at 31 Devember 2023
Cost

Accurnulated depreciation

Met book amount
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Leaselhold Furniture
improve- and Oifice
ments fixtures equipment Velielos Tutal
HES o0 HES'900 HES'oo0 HES oow HES oo
17,356 1544 17047 1,638 47,5058
(14,354) (1,265} {14,980} (1.456) {32.056)
002 278 2,067 18z 5,520
R

3,000 73 2,067 182 £ 520

- - 1,225 = 1,225
(138:2) (32) {1,008) (:82) (2,664)
1620 186 2,284 4050
17,356 L5434 18,272 1638 38,810
(15,736) (1.358) {15,988) (1,638) (34,720)
1,620 166 2384 - 4,090

1,620 186 2,284 # 4,000

357 97 173 - G667
393 (73] {1,232} - {2698

g 10 1,235 = 2083

17,753 1,641 18,445 1,638 20,477
t7,129) {1.431) {17,.220) (1838) (a7}

bug 210 1,225 - 2,059

- 32 -
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Intangible assets
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Computer

software Others Total

HEK$ooo HEK% 000 HE% o000
As at 1 January 2022
Cost 31,199 7.500 38,600
Accurulated amortisation {25,801} - (25,801)
Net book amount 5,308 7,500 12,808
Year ended 31 December zozz
Opening net book anwount 5.308 7,500 12,808
Additions 1,701 - L7491
Amortisation (Nota 8) (2,130) - (2,130)
Closing net book amount 4,969 7,500 12,469
As at 31 December 2022
Cost 32,8990 Fha00 40490
Accumulated amortisation (28,021) - {28,021)
Net book amount 4,969 7,500 12,460
Year ended 31 December 2zo23
Opening net book amount 4,969 7,500 12,469
Additions a7 - 27
Amortisation (Note 8) {2,016) - {2,016)
Closing net book amount 2,080 7,500 10,480
As al 31 Decembhber 20232
Cost 33,047 7000 40,517
Accuniulated amortisation (30,037) = (30,037)
MNet book amount 2,980 7,500 10,480
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Investments

Investinents include the following:

Financial asscts at fair
value through profit or loss

2023 2022

HEK%'ooo HE%'000
Listed securities (hy place of listing)
Eguily secorilies — Hong Eong 1,040 4,668
Investment funds - Hong Kang 555949 39,599
Market value of listed secarities 556,505 44,267
Unli.aitjfﬁ securities (hy place of incorporation/

esta mhmenh

Egquily securities - Singapore - 1,034
Investment funds - Cayman Islands 2,191 2,738
[nvestment funds — Hong Kong 180,365 120,600
Tnwvestiment funds - Ireland {(Note 13.1) 6n2,042 G70,737
Investment funds — South Korea = 35,543
Fair value of unlisied securities 834,508 839,742
Total investments 1,391,593 884,000
Representing:
Mon-current 1,388,300 875,780
Current 3,293 8,230
Total investments 1,301,793 B84,000

Interests in unconsolidated structured entities

The Company provided seed capital to set up a number of investment funds, of which the Company
aris as an investment manoger or investment advisor. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the
Company determined that all of these investment funds are uneonsolidated structured entities.
Refer to note 26.2 for details.

The maximum exposure to loss for all intsrects in structure entities i the earrying value of the
investments in investment funds {refer to note 26,2) and fees receivable as shown in the statement
of financial position. The net asset value of the investment funds invested by the Company mnges
from HE$46,000 to HE$48: million (2o22: HE$67,000 to HEK$40 million). The size of the
investment funds managed by the Company ranges from US$4 million to 17851,436 million (zo22:
US54 million to US$1,4 12 million). During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, other than
seed capital, the Company did not provide other finaneial support to the unconsolidated structured
enlities and has no intention of providing other support.
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VALUL PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOL THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2023

Investments (Continued)

Fnteresis in unconsolidated structured entities (Continued)

Thiring the year ended 31 December 2023, there were purchase of investments of Value Gold ETF
of HES420,201,600, Value Partners EMQQ Emerging Markets Internet & Feommerce ETT of
HE$71.950,000 and Value Partners All China Bond Fund of HE$3g,162,000 from a related
company, Please refer to Note 23.7 for details.

Investments are denominated in the following currencies:

202g 2pee

HEK$'oo0 HEKS$'000
Heng Kong dollar 564,511 45,073
Pound sterling 20,293 455
Renminbi 7044 783
Singapore dollar 20,485 14,291
South Eovean won - 35543
United States dollar 751,902 786,820
Others 27,358 1,035
Total investments 1,301,593 884,009

Investment in an associate measured at fair value
[nvestment in an associate is categorised in “Non-current Investments' in the statement of financial
position,

Where the Company has interests in the investment funds that give the Compuany significant
influence, but not control, the Company records such investments st fair valoe. Details of such
investment funds arc summarised as follows:

Place of Interest held
Name incorporation 2023 2092
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV (¥ Treland 41% 30%

=023 zpza
HE$'ooo HEK$'opo

Valpe Partners Ireland Fund [CAV

Net asset value 1,575,751 2,202,207

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year (B8,421) (1,308,023)

_35_
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER zo23

13 Investments (Continwed)
121 Investment in an associate measured at fair value (Continued)

{(a) The sub-fmds under Value Partners Irelzand Fund ICAV are considered as an associate in
an aggregate basis. The sub-funds included: Value Partners Asia Ex-Japan Equity Fund,
Value Partners Asian Dynamic Bond Fund, Value Partners China A Shares Equity Fund,
Value Partners China A Shares High Dividend Fund, Value Partners Classic Equity Fand,
Valua Partners Greater China High Yield Bond Fund, Value Partners Health Care Fund and
Value Partners Asian Food and Nutrition Fund.,

The fair value of the Company’s interests in such investment funds are summazrised in note
26.2.

14 Fees receivable

The cavrying amounts of fees receivable approximate their fair value due to the short-term maturity.
Tees receivable from investment management activities are mainly due at Lthe end of the relevant
valuation period of the investment funds and managed accounts. HHowever, some of these fees
receivable are only due after the relevant valuation period as a result of credit periods granted to
certain inveshiment funds and managed accounts which are generally within one month. The aging
analysis of fees receivable that were past due but not impaired is as follows:

2023 2022
HES 000 HE# 000

Fees receivable that were past due but not impaired
1=30 days 46 210
Fees receivable that were within credit period (31 - oo days) 37T 4,090
Total fees receivable 4,816 4,500

Fees receivable are denominated in the following currencies:

2023 2022
HE%'o000 HK$'000
Haong Kong dollar 1,224 1564
United States dollar 2,502 2,736
Total fees receivable 2,816 4,300

Fees recelvable from investment management activities are gencrally deducted from the net asset
valoe of the investment funds and managed accounts and paid directly by the administrator or
custodian of the investment funds and managed aceounts at the end of the relevant valuation period

or credit period, as appropriate.

There was no impairment provision on fees receivable as at 31 December 20213 and 2022,

36..
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

15 Cash and ¢ash equivalents

2023 zozz
HES000 HEK#%'ooo
Cash at banks and in hand 17,176 23,504
Short-terma bank deposits 20,819 277,242
Deposits with brokers 244 3,031
Total cash and cash cquivalents 38,230 303,777
Casl and eash equivalents are denominated in the following eurreneies:
2023 zgzz
HEK%'oo0 HKS%'aoo
Australian dollar 387 1
Hong Eong dollar 0,372 4,152
Japanese yen 1 1
Pound sterling 10 64,605
Renminbi 4 1,042
Singapore dollar 20,860 56,820
United States dollar 7,605 197,156
Taotal eash and cash equivalents ) 538,239 203,777
16 Issued equity
Share Share
Number of shares capital premium Total
Class A Class B HE$'o00 HK3'ao0 HEs'000
As al 1 January 2022,
31 December 2022,
1January 2023 and
31 December 2023 11,400,459 2,803,315 11,855 4L01% 53,768

As at 31 Decemaber 2023, the total authorised number of Class A ordinary shares and Class B
ardinary shares were 15,000,000 shares {2022: 15,000,000 shares) and 3,893,518 shares (2o22:
9,993,318 shares) respectively with a par value of US$0.1 (zoz2: US$0.1) per share and all issued
shares were fully paid.

The ordinary shares are non-redeemable and are entitled to dividends, Each ordinary share carries
one vote. 1o the case of winding up of the Company, ordinary shares carry the right to return the
paid-up capital and any balance then remaining,

The Class A and Class B ordinary shares have the same rights with regard to voting and dividends
excepl in the event of liguidation, no distribotion shall be made to the holders of Class A ordinary
shares unless the holders of Class B ordinary shares have received the full amount of their
liguidation values. In addition, any surplus assets after distribution to the helders of Class A and
Class B ordinary shares as mentioned above shall be distributed to the holders of Class B ordinary
shares ratablv.

- 3?-
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VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

Deferred tax

The movement of deferrad tax assets is as follows:

Accelerated
tax
depreciation
HKs'oo00

Deferred tax assets
As at 1 January 2o22 1,549
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) 54
As at 31 December 2022 and 1 January 2023 1,603
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10) 548
Asgat 91 December 2025 2,151

‘The analysis of deferved tox is as follows:
2023 2022
HES'000 HE$ 000
Deferted tax assets:
= Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than 12

montls 2,151 1,60%

18 Distribution fee expenses payable

The carrying amounts of distribution fee expenses payvable approximate their fair value due to the
short-term maturity. The aging analysis of distribution fee expenses payable is as follows:

2023 2022

HEs'o00 HKs'o00
0 - 50 days 3231 3,775
a1 to 60 days - 163
Orver 6o days 42 44
Total distribution fee expenses payahle 9,273 3,980

As at 31 December 2023 and 2023, all the disiribution fee expenses payable are denominated in
United States dollar.

-98-
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Right-of-use Assets — properties

Cost
Al 1 January
Renewal of new leases

At 31 December

At 1.January
Depreciation

At 31 December

Met book value
At 31 December

EDINETOOOO
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2023 2022
HK& 000 HEK&'oo0
58,153 58,153
35,046 -
O, 700 58,153
{32,668) (13,016)
(17.384) (18,752)
(50,052) (32,668)
43,747 25,485

Except for shorl-term leases and leases of low-value assels of he Group of which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries is a lessee and in relation to which the recognition exemption under HEFRS
16 iz appliczble, the Company recognizes for each of the leases a right-of-use assct. As at 31
December 2023 and 2025, right-of-uze assels recognised were related Lo properties.

Depreciation charge on the right-of-use assets is recognised using the straight-line method, being
the pericd from the dales of the commencemenl/modification of the leases to the end of the term,

The carrying balances of the right-cf-use assets are amertised to nil on the expiny dates efthe leases.

Lease Liabilities :

Al 1 January

Renewal of new leases
Tease payments
Finance costs

At 31 December

Representing
Current
- contraciual maturity within 1 yvear

Nen-current
- eontractual maturity after 1 year but within 2 vears
- contractual maturity after 2 years but within 5 years

Total lease linbilities
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2023 2022
HES 000 HES 000
24,911 45407
35,6046 -
{18,580) {20,112)
1,526 1,516
43,605 24,911
2023 2022
HES'ooo HES'000
12,905 17,6808
12,130 7108
18,550 5
30,643 7,103
43,603 24,911
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

21 Financial instruments by category

As of 31 December 2023 and 2022, other than fnvestments as disclosed in the financial staternents
which are elassified as finaneial assets at fair value through prefit or loss, all financial assets
ineluding amounts due from related companies, fees receivable, other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents are categorised as and carried at amortised cost, All the financial liabilities of the
Company arc carried at amortiscd cost.

2a Dividends
The directors did not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of the vear ended 31 December
2023, For the vear ended 51 December 2022, interim dividend of HEK$100,000,000 was declared
by the Company.

23 Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

(a) Reconciliation of loss before tax to net cash used in operations

2023 2022

HES%'aoo HK%$'oo0
Lass before tax (7,974} (216,633)
Adfustiments for
Interest income (6,005} (2,833)
Dividend income {1,575) (1,423)
Depreciation and amortisation 4,714 4,744
Depreciation of right-of-use assets - properties 17,384 18,752
Interest expenses on lease lizbility 1,626 1,616
Other (gains)/losses on investments (12,248) 20%.975
Choanges in working capilal
Other assels 1,885 -
Amounts due from related companies 13,703 (=,19:2)
Fees receivable 484 2,302
Frepavments and other receivables (47,302) 2,210
Amounts due to related companies {117,261) 73,067
Accrued bonus (35,998) (75.047)
Distribution and advisory fee expenses pavable (7o7) (3,248)
Other payvables and acerued expenses {1,819] {1,411)
Dividend payable {100,000) -
Amount due to ultimate holding company - {14,7a5)
Met cash used in operations (=00,583) (10,866)

24 Contingencies
The Company has contingent assets in respect of performance fees and contingent liabilities in
respect of the performance fee element of distribution fee expenses arising in the ordinary course
of business.

z24.1 Contingent assets
Performance fees for each performance period are generally calculated annually with reference to a

performance fee valuation day. Performance fees are only recognised when they are earned by the
Company.

- 40~
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24,1 Contingent assets (Continued)

Az a result, as at 31 December 2023 and 2023, performance fees in respect of performance periods
ending on a perfurmance fee valnation day not falling within the corresponding vear have not been
vecognised, These performance fees may be receivable in cash if a positive performance results on
the perfurmance fee valuation days, taking into consideration the relevant basis of caleulation for
the investment fundz and managed acconnts.

24.2 Contingent liahilities

The performance fee element of distribulion fee expenses is based on the performance fees earned
by the Company. These distribulion fes expenses are recognised when the performance lees are
earned by the Company and the Company is obliged to pay the corresponding distribution fee
expenses,

Az a result, as al 31 Decermnber 2023 and 2023, the performance lee element of distribution [ee
expenses in respect of performance perfods ending on a performance fee valuation day not [alling
within the corresponding year have not been recognised. These distribution fee expenses may be
payable in cash if the performance fees are subsequently earned on the performance fee valuation
davs.

25 Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2023, the capital commitment contracted to purchase 1T facilities and licensed
software but not yet incurred amounted to HK$7,020,000 (2022: HKS10,304 ,000).

2023 2022
HEs000 HEKS'000

Within 1 year 1,980 2,584
1-2Z years 1,080 1,080
2-3 yeuls 1,980 1,080
3 years or above 1,980 3,960

7,920 10,304

20 Related-party transactions
Apart from those disclosed elsewhere in the finanecial statements, the Company has also entered
into the fallowing significant related-party transactions which, in the opinion of the directors, were
carried out in the ordinary and usual course of the Company’s business,

26.1 Key management compensation

Eey management includes directors of the Conzpany. The compensation to key management for
emplovee services is as follows:

2023 2022
HE&'000 HEK&'noo

Management bonus, salaries and other short-tenm employes
benefits 17,729 30,295
Share-based compensation 6,715 12,353
Pension costs - mandatory provident fund scheme 54 54
Total key management compenisation 24,406 42,700

- 41~
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=6 Related-party transactions (Continued)
26.2 Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company

The Company had investments in the following structured entities. These are the investment funds
under the Company's management or advisory and from which it earns fees from investment
management or advisory services and fund distribution activities. These investment funds manage
pools of assets from investors, and are financed through the issue of units/shares to investors.
Certain investment funds where the Company has significant influence are diselosed in note 13.1.

2023 2022
HE$'ooo HES 000
Unconsolidated structured entities

Value Gald ETF M 481,453 20,603
Value Partners China A-Share Select Fund (& 471 629
Value Partners Fund Series — Value Partners Asian

Innovation Opportunitics Fund 04,048 77,130
Valuc Partners Classic Fund & 1,126 3,405
Value Parmers Fund Series - Value Partners Asian Total

Return Bond Fond 12,892 12,077
Value Partners Fund Series = Value Partners Axian Tneome

Fund ® 379 548
Value Partners Fund Series — Value Partners All China Bond

Funed 40,078 183
Value Partners [ntelligent Funds — Chinese Mainland Focus

Fund 463 1,743
Value Partners [reland Fund ICAV = Value Partners Asia Ex-

Japan Equity Fund ® &6 (Note 13.1) 31,223 30,411
Value Partners [reland Fund ICAV = Value Partners Asia

Dynamiec Bond Fund ©{Note 15.1) 33,150 32,952
Value Pariners Treland Fund ICAYV - Value Partners All China

Equity Fund =} {Nete 13.1) - &7
Value Partners Dieland Fund ICAV - Value Partners Classie

Equity Fund = {Note 13.1) Gih 70
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV - Value Partners lealth

Care Fund ™ {MNote 13.1) 75,005 103,380
Value Partners [reland Fund ICAV - Value Partners Ching 4

Shares Equity Fund # &8 {Note 13.1) 39,8586 51,500
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV - Value Partners Chinag A

Shares High Dividend Fund & (Note 13.1) 47,052 50,108
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV - Value Partners China A

Shares Consumption Fund ™ {(Note 15.1) - 45,056
Value Partners Ireland Fund ICAV - Value Partners Greater

China High Yield Bond Fund @ {Note 13.1) 319,014 357,123
WValue Partners Hedge Fund Limited (= 2 2
Value Partners High-Dividend Stocks Fund @ o.064 2,092
Walue Partners Multi-Asset Fund (@ 24,364 2,652
Hanwha Value Partners Asia High Dividend Equity Feeder ‘

Fund - 35,543
Value Partners Greater China High Yield Income Fund & 1,287 1,004
Value Partners Asian Food And Nutrition Fundd) 105,684 4
Value Partners EMQOQ) Emerging Markets Internet &

Ecommerce ETF 74,500 -
Total investments in investment funds which are
managed/advised by the Company 1,390,547 878,307
a 4_'2 -
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26 Related-party transactions (Continued)

26.2 Investments in investment funds which are managed/advised by the Company
{Continued)

{2} The sharves held were management shares.

(b) The units held were Class X units.

3] The units held was Class V unit.

(d) The units held were Class A units and Class X units.
(e} The units held were Closs BKDR units.

if) The units held were Class A unhedge and hedge.
(gl The units held were Class V units and Class X units,
(h) The units held were listed class units,

26.3 Amounts due from and to related companies

The amounts due from and due to related companies mainly ariscs from management serviee foes
and fund transfer to related companies which are unsecored, non-interest bearing and have no (xed
repayment terms.

26.4 Service fees from the ultimate holding eompany and related eompanies

The Company received service fees from its ultimate holding company and related companies for
the reimbursement of overheads and operating expenses in respect of general administrative
gervices. For the vear ended 31 December 2022, the service fee in connection with bonus was
allocated to a related company for the service performance of the Company attribute to the related
company of HK34,570,000 and there was no such allocation during the year ended 31 December
2023, Serviee fees from its ultimate helding company and related companies for the year ended 31
Deceraber 2023 were HKS232 451 000 (2o022: HES301,187,000).

26.5 Service fees to the ultimate holding company and a related company
The Company was charged service fees by its ultimate holding company and a related company for
the provision of marketing and business networking services and general administrative services to
the Company. Service fees to ultimate holding company was HE$3,600,000 (2022: HK$3,600,000)
and a related company for the year ended 31 December 2023 was HES15,654,000 (2022;
HE$16,007,000],

26,6 Management fee income

The Company acts as the fund manager lor underlying funds it manages and received the
management fee income.

26.7 Investments in the listed investment funds
During the year ended gist December 20a3, the purchases of Value Geld ETF of HES420,201,000,
Value Partners EMQGQ Emerging Markets Internet & Feommerce ETF of HES71L.050,000 and Value

Partners All China Bond Fand of HES$2g,162,000 from the related company, Value Partners Hong
Eong Limited, were settled through the amount due to a related company .

n43-
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2023 12 31 1,300,000 203,996

1981 11 10

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

2023 12 31 6,827,891 1,071,433

1974

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

2023 12 31 3,000,000,000
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HSBC Trustee Cayman Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.

HSBC Trustee Cayman Limited

HSBC Institutional Trust Services Asia Limited

Aizawa Securities Co., Ltd.
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2020 PF
2020 MF
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2.1
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CIMA
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12
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5.7
CIMA
5.8 CIMA 24,390
30,488
8,536
36,585 42,682

8,536
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Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “ Sub-fund”), a sub-fund of
Value Partners Intelligent Funds, set out on pages 7 to 34, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities
and investment schedule as at 31 December 2023, the statement of operations, the statement of changes in net
assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of the Sub-
fund as at 31 December 2023, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) issued by the Hong
Kong Ingtitute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) . Our responsihilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises al the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materialy inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Satements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal
control as the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing
the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend
to liquidate the Sub-fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Sub-fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors
’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evauate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG LLP

26 April 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”), which are set out on pages 5 to 43, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financia statements, comprising material accounting policy and other explanatory information.
Our Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Accounts and Audit) Rules.

263/280



EDINETOOOO
OO000D0000DO00DO0Oo(EL4980)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and

Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 April 2024
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SIX Cricket Square
Grand Cayman KY 1-1106

Cayman Idands
Telephone +1 345 949 4800
Fax +1345949 7164

Internet  www.kpmg.ky
Independent Auditors Report to the Trustee
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of JA-VP China New Century Fund (the “Sub- fund”), a sub-fund of
Vaue Partners Intelligent Funds, set out on pages 7 to 35, which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities
including the investment schedule, as at 31 December 2022, the statement of operations, the statement of changes
in net assets and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of the Sub-
fund as at 31 December 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Sub-fund in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditors
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsihilities of the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund for the Financial Statements

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and for such internal
control as the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund are responsible for assessing
the Sub-fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund either intend
to liquidate the Sub-fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.

This report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will aways detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSASs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Sub-fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager's and the Trustee's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-fund's ahility to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Sub-fund to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.
We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-fund regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

KPMG

24 April 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

What we have audited

Thefinancial statements of Value Partners Limited (the “Company”), which are set out on pages 5 to 43, comprise:
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022;
the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended,;
the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
the cash flow statement for the year then ended; and
the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.
Our Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31
December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).
Basisfor Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAS’) and with reference to
Practice Note 820 (Revised) “The Audit of Licensed Corporations and Associated Entities of Intermediaries’ issued by
the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsihilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants

(the “Code™), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors for the Financia Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the

preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

In addition, the directors are required to ensure that the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept
under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong

Securities and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules.

Auditor’' s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are required to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

(Accounts and Audit) Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficienciesin internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE SOLE SHAREHOLDER OF VALUE PARTNERS LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

Report on Matters under the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and Hong Kong Securities
and Futures (Accounts and Audit) Rules of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Ordinance

In our opinion, the financial statements are in accordance with the records kept under the Hong Kong Securities and

Futures (Keeping of Records) Rules and satisfy the requirements of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Accounts
and Audit) Rules.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 April 2023
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